
GLADES COUNTY 2024 VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
AUGUST 27, 2024 AT 10:00 AM 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order and Verification of Quorum (See Exhibit A) – VAB Counsel 
 

2. Ratify the private board legal counsel (See Exhibit B) – motion needed 
 

3. Affidavit of Publication for meeting notice (See Exhibit C) – VAB Counsel 
 

4. Introduction of Board Members (Contact Information – See Exhibit D.1) 
a. VAB Chair Appointed by Board of County Commissioners – See Exhibit D.2) 
b. Chair Appoints Vice-Chair – no motion needed/appointment only 

 
5. Introduce the Board Clerk or Designee (Contact Information - See Exhibit D.1) 
 
6. Approval of the agenda for this Organizational Meeting – motion needed 

 
7. Hearing Procedures  

Good Cause - Designate VAB counsel to review and grant/deny late filed petitions for 
Good Cause, rescheduled hearing requests requiring good cause statements, and good 
cause statements for failure to appear at scheduled hearings pursuant to F.A.C. 12D-
9.015, F.A.C. 12D-9.019 and F.A.C. 12D-9.021; and authorize VAB counsel to request 
more definite information from petitioners during any good cause review. – motion 
needed 
 

8. Discuss, take testimony on and adopt or ratify with any required revision or amendment 
any local administrative procedures and forms of the board. - Telephonic Hearing 
Procedures – Pursuant to F.A.C. 12D-9.026, the VAB is permitted to hold remote 
hearings. As such, the VAB must establish Telephonic Hearing Procedures (see Exhibit 
E) - motion needed 
 

9. Approve minutes of the August 15, 2023 – 2023 Organizational Meeting: (See Exhibit F) - 
motion needed 

 
10. Adopt and make available to the public and board members the following (motion needed 

for all): 
a. Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-9 (Uniform Rules of Procedure for 

Hearings) 
b. Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-10 (Rules applicable to the requirements for 

hearings and decisions. 
c. Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-16 



d. Rules 12D-51.001, 51.002, 51.003, F.A.C., and Chapters 192 through 197, F.S. 
(Reference information containing the guidelines and statutes applicable to 
assessments and assessment administration) 

e. Florida’s Government in the Sunshine (Sunshine Law) Manual 
f. Department of Revenue approved VAB forms 
g. Department of Revenue Uniform Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

11. Adopt or ratify by resolution any filing fee for petitions for that year, in an amount not to 
exceed $15.00 (See Exhibit G) – motion needed 

 
12. Authorize VAB Counsel to review and update the Clerk’s VAB website (Uniform Policies 

and Procedures), if necessary. – motion needed 
 

13. Authorize Clerk to hire a Court Reporter for the hearings. – motion needed 
 

14. Authorize the Chair to sign Forms DR-488P, 2024 Preliminary Certifications of the Value 
Adjustment Board (Real Property and Tangible Personal Property). (See Exhibit H) – 
motion needed 
 

15. Discuss general information on Florida’s property tax system, respective roles within this 
system, taxpayer opportunities to participate in the system, and property taxpayer rights – 
VAB Counsel (See Exhibit I) 
 

16. Discuss law/rule changes as they affect VAB operations - VAB Counsel (See Exhibit J) 
 

17. Announce the tentative schedule for the Value Adjustment Board taking into 
consideration the number of petitions filed, the possibility of the need to reschedule and 
the requirement that the board stay in session until all petitions have been heard. 

a. Hearing notice review and discussion of dates for hearings (See Exhibit K) 
 

18. Additional Items for Discussion and Board Counsel review of Statutory and Rule 
Requirements for Organizational Meetings to ensure Board compliance (See Exhibit L) 
 

19. Approve the Chair signing the DR-488 forms and approve the Clerk publishing the DR-
529 form without a formal VAB meeting, in the event there are no VAB hearings/changes 
to the tax rolls as a result of VAB action. – motion needed 
 

20. Public Comment 
 

Computer:  VAB Organizational Meeting Agenda August 27, 2024 



Statutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0194/Sections/0194.015.html[8/13/2024 12:59:03 PM]

Search Statutes: 2024   August 13, 2024

Home
Senate
House
Citator

Statutes, Constitution,
& Laws of Florida

Florida Statutes
Search Statutes

Search Tips
Florida Constitution

Laws of Florida
Legislative & Executive

Branch Lobbyists
Information Center

Joint Legislative
Committees & 
Other Entities

Historical Committees
Florida Government

Efficiency Task Force
Legislative Employment

Legistore
Links

Select Year:   2024  

The 2024 Florida Statutes 

Title XIV
TAXATION AND

FINANCE

Chapter 194 
ADMINISTRATIVE AND JUDICIAL REVIEW OF

PROPERTY TAXES

View Entire
Chapter

194.015  Value adjustment board.—There is hereby created a value adjustment board for each
county, which shall consist of two members of the governing body of the county as elected from the
membership of the board of said governing body, one of whom shall be elected chairperson, and one
member of the school board as elected from the membership of the school board, and two citizen
members, one of whom shall be appointed by the governing body of the county and must own
homestead property within the county and one of whom must be appointed by the school board and
must own a business occupying commercial space located within the school district. A citizen member
may not be a member or an employee of any taxing authority, and may not be a person who
represents property owners in any administrative or judicial review of property taxes. The members
of the board may be temporarily replaced by other members of the respective boards on appointment
by their respective chairpersons. Any three members shall constitute a quorum of the board, except
that each quorum must include at least one member of said governing board, at least one member of
the school board, and at least one citizen member and no meeting of the board shall take place
unless a quorum is present. Members of the board may receive such per diem compensation as is
allowed by law for state employees if both bodies elect to allow such compensation. The clerk of the
governing body of the county shall be the clerk of the value adjustment board. The board shall
appoint private counsel who has practiced law for over 5 years and who shall receive such
compensation as may be established by the board. The private counsel may not represent the
property appraiser, the tax collector, any taxing authority, or any property owner in any
administrative or judicial review of property taxes. No meeting of the board shall take place unless
counsel to the board is present. Two-fifths of the expenses of the board shall be borne by the district
school board and three-fifths by the district county commission.

History.—s. 2, ch. 69-140; s. 1, ch. 69-300; s. 26, ch. 70-243; s. 22, ch. 73-172; s. 5, ch. 74-234; s. 1, ch. 75-77; s. 6,
ch. 76-133; s. 2, ch. 76-234; s. 1, ch. 77-69; s. 145, ch. 91-112; s. 978, ch. 95-147; s. 4, ch. 2008-197.

Copyright © 1995-2024 The Florida Legislature • Privacy Statement • Contact Us

Exhibit "A"

Exhibit "A" 
Page 1 of 1

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Mode=View%20Statutes&Submenu=1&Tab=statutes
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Mode=Search%20Statutes&Submenu=2&Tab=statutes
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=statutes_search_tips.html&Directory=Info_Center/help/&Location=app&Tab=statutes&Submenu=2
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Mode=Constitution&Submenu=3&Tab=statutes
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Mode=Laws%20of%20Florida&Submenu=4&Tab=statutes
http://sb.flleg.gov/
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm
http://www.flsenate.gov/
http://www.myfloridahouse.gov/
http://billinfo.leg.state.fl.us/
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Tab=statutes&submenu=-1
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Tab=statutes&submenu=-1
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Mode=View%20Statutes&Submenu=1&Tab=statutes
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Mode=Search%20Statutes&Submenu=2&Tab=statutes
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=statutes_search_tips.html&Directory=Info_Center/help/&Location=app&Tab=statutes&Submenu=2
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Mode=Constitution&Submenu=3&Tab=statutes
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Mode=Laws%20of%20Florida&Submenu=4&Tab=statutes
https://www.floridalobbyist.gov/
https://www.floridalobbyist.gov/
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Tab=info_center&submenu=-1
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Tab=committees
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Tab=committees
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Tab=committees
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/index.cfm?Tab=committees
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=index.html&Directory=FloridaEfficiency/&Location=app
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=index.html&Directory=FloridaEfficiency/&Location=app
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=index.cfm&Directory=Info_Center/employment/&Location=app
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=index.html&Directory=portal/legistore/&Location=app
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=links.html&Directory=welcome/&Location=app
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=interpreter.html&Directory=Info_Center/help/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4
https://www.myfloridahouse.gov/api/document/house?Leaf=HouseContent/opi/Lists/Just%20for%20Students/Attachments/8/Finding%20Florida%202nd%20Edition.pdf
https://www.myfloridahouse.gov/api/document/house?Leaf=HouseContent/opi/Lists/Just%20for%20Students/Attachments/10/Life%20As%20A%20Lawmaker.pdf
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Index&Title_Request=XIV#TitleXIV
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0194/0194ContentsIndex.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0194/0194.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0194/0194.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=privacy.html&Directory=welcome/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=contact.html&Directory=Info_Center/help/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 1 of 12



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 2 of 12



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 3 of 12



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 4 of 12



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 5 of 12



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 6 of 12



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 7 of 12



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 8 of 12



Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 9 of 12



Holly E Cosby

Holly E. Cosby, Esq.
Digitally signed by Holly E. Cosby, Esq. 
DN: cn=Holly E. Cosby, Esq., o=Law Office of Holly 
E. Cosby, PA, email=holly@cosbylaw.com, c=US 
Date: 2024.07.28 11:11:58 -04'00'

Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 10 of 12



���������	���
������
 ��������

������� �
��������

������������������������ �������!�������"��#�������#�����"��#������#��
� �"�����
�

������������������������ �������!�������"��#�������#�����"��#������#��
� �"�����

$����#��%���&�����'�����&��%����(��������)
�
*����� ����� �������!�������"��#�������#�����"��#������#��
� �"�����
�
���#��� +���
� ,,���������#���-�#�,,.�/0������%�1����������������
� -����#���%�2�.�/��#��#����#�����������������&�����0
�

34567879:64

���������������#��%���������;��������%�#��&������.�<&����#��%��������������������+=>�%�#���.�����'�����&������������(�������������
������(����(.�$�����
������������������
�����������'�#����;��(.��������������
��������;���&����#��%���������
��#��������#��#

�#���.

>�#��&���������&��������������(��������(�
������#��#��;���&����#��%�����������
���������#��&���
�������������.

����'�������;��������������

�
�
�

?@AB@ACD�EEFEA�GH IJKLMNO�PQROLSTQUS�KV�WQXQUYQ�Z�[KTRJQSQN�\�]̂OT�\�A_AC�̀OJYQ�GNaYbSTQUS�cKOLN�HQTdQLb�OUN�cKOLN�GSSKLUQeb�̀Gc�]̂OT

fSSRbF@@ggghTeSQbSiKThUQS@ORR@TejOkQOSQbSIMUMbfhiVT E@Cl

Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 11 of 12



 

 
 

 
   

|     
541 E. Mitchell Hammock Rd, Oviedo, FL 32765 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
This Certificate does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage afforded by the policy. 

 
This is to certify that the policy of insurance shown below has been issued and is in force at this time. 
 
NAMED INSURED AND ADDRESS: 

Law Office of Holly E. Cosby, P.A. 
602 Center Road 
Fort Myers, FL 33907 
 

TYPE OF INSURANCE:     LAWYERS PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
 
POLICY NUMBER:         107258 
 
POLICY TERM:      10/13/2023 to 10/13/2024   
   
LIMITS OF LIABILITY:     $500,000 Per Claim/$1,000,000 Total Limit 
 
DEDUCTIBLE:      $2,500 
 
CANCELLATION:  Should the above-described policy be canceled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing 
Company will endeavor to mail 30 days written notice to the below named Certificate Holder, but failure to mail 
such notice shall impose NO obligation or liability of any kind upon the Company, its agents, or representatives.  
 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF CERTIFICATE HOLDER:   
 

Glades County Value Adjustment Board  
c/o Tami Pearce Simmons  
500 Avenue J  
Moore Haven, Florida 33471 

 
This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the Certificate Holder. 
 
 
 
 
 

                              
                                                            _August 18, 2023_ 
                                          DATE OF ISSUE 
 

Exhibit "B"

Exhibit "B" 
Page 12 of 12



Proof of Publication
8/21/2024

STATE OF FLORIDA:
COUNTY OF GLADES:

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared
Katrina Elsken Muros, who on oath says that she is 
Editor in Chief of the Lake Okeechobee News, a 
weekly newspaper published in Glades County, Flori-
da; that the attached copy of advertisement, being a
Public Notice in the matter of 

Public Notice

in the 19th Judicial District of the Circuit Court of
Glades County, Florida, was published in said newspa-
per in the issues of or by publication on the
newspaper’s website, if authorized, on 
Lake Okeechobee News: 8/14/2024, 8/21/2024
LakeONews.com: 8/14/2024, 8/15/2024, 8/16/2024,
8/17/2024, 8/18/2024, 8/19/2024, 8/20/2024,
8/21/2024

Affiant further says that the newspaper complies with
all legal requirements for publication in Chapter 50,
Florida Statutes.

     Sworn to and subscribed before me by means of
            Physical Presence      X   Online Notarization

physical presence or online notarization, this
8/21/2024

Exhibit "C"

Exhibit "C" 
Page 1 of 2



Proof of Publication
8/21/2024

Name GLADES COUNTY CLERK OF COURT
Order Number 4593
Ordered By TAMI PEARCE SIMMONS
Order Date 8/7/2024
Description August 27 Value Adjustment Board Meeting
Number Issues 10
Pub Count 2
First Issue 8/14/2024
Last Issue 8/21/2024
Publications Lake Okeechobee News, LakeONews.com
Pub Dates Lake Okeechobee News: 8/14/2024,

8/21/2024
LakeONews.com: 8/14/2024, 8/15/2024,
8/16/2024, 8/17/2024, 8/18/2024, 8/19/2024,
8/20/2024, 8/21/2024

Exhibit "C"

Exhibit "C" 
Page 2 of 2



2024 VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
            CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

 
BOARD MEMBERS  
 
Commissioner Tim Stanley 
1114 Oak Street 
Okeechobee, Florida 34974 
(863) 532-9891 
tstanley@myglades.com 

 
Commissioner Hattie Taylor 
1138 North Avenue 
Moore Haven, Florida 33471 
(863) 946-6000 
htaylor@myglades.com 

 
Diane Cianfrani, BoCC Citizen Member 
1582 Gate Road 
LaBelle, Florida 33935 
(863) 674-0467 
jdlabelle830@gmail.com 

 
Tommy Perry, School Board Citizen Member  
PO Box 1029  
Clewiston, Florida 33440 
(863) 983-9188  
tperry@johnsonprewitt.com 

 
Patricia Pearce, School Board 
25731 E. State Road 78 
Okeechobee, FL 34974 
(863) 634-1103 
patriciabpearc@aol.com  

 
Jenny Allen, School Board Alternate 
P.O. Box 812 
Moore Haven Florida 33471 
(863) 227-6354   
jallen@myglades.com 

  
CLERK OF COURT    
 
Honorable Tami Pearce Simmons 
P.O. Box 10 
Moore Haven, Florida 33471 
(863) 946-6002 
tsimmons@gladesclerk.com  

 
Administrative Assistant to the Clerk 
Brittany Heflin 
(863) 946-6010 
bheflin@gladesclerk.com  

  
LEGAL COUNSEL  
 
Holly E. Cosby, Esq. 
602 Center Road 
Fort Myers, Florida 33907 
(239) 931-0006 
holly@cosbylaw.com  

 

                      
 

Exhibit "D.1"

Exhibit "D.1" 
Page 1 of 1

mailto:tstanley@myglades.com
mailto:jdlabelle830@gmail.com
mailto:tperry@johnsonprewitt.com
mailto:patriciabpearc@aol.com
mailto:jenny.allen@glades-schools.org
mailto:tsimmons@gladesclerk.com
mailto:bheflin@gladesclerk.com
mailto:holly@cosbylaw.com


Please Respond to: 
Office of the General Counsel 

Property Tax Oversight Legal Section 
Post Office Box 6668 

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6668 
steve.keller@floridarevenue.com 

 
May 14, 2024 

 
          E-MAIL DELIVERY  
 
From:     Stephen J. Keller 

     Chief Legal Counsel for Property Tax Litigation and VAB Oversight, 
     Florida Department of Revenue (DOR) 

To:       Jon Moyle, Legal Counsel, Leon County Value Adjustment Board (VAB) 
     Mackenzie Baughn, Sr. Paralegal, Leon County Attorney's Office 

Subject: Election of Chairperson for VAB by County Governing Body 
 
Thank you for your emails on behalf of the Leon County Attorney’s Office and several 
VABs in which you inquire about the election process for the value adjustment board 
chairperson. Your question to the Department is as follows: 
 

• “Specifically, the pending question is who elects the chair of the VAB?  The two 
possible choices are the county commission when “electing” two members of 
their commission to serve on the VAB or the VAB when convening and organizing 
at its annual organizational meeting.” 

 
According to s. 194.015, F.S., the VAB is composed of two members of the county's 
governing body, one of whom is elected as the chairperson. Section 194.015, F.S. 
creates the value adjustment boards: 
 
“Value adjustment board.—There is hereby created a value adjustment board for each 
county, which shall consist of two members of the governing body of the county as 
elected from the membership of the board of said governing body, one of whom shall 
be elected chairperson, and one member of the school board as elected from the 
membership of the school board, and two citizen members, one of whom shall be 
appointed by the governing body of the county and must own homestead property 
within the county and one of whom must be appointed by the school board and must 
own a business occupying commercial space located within the school district. […]” 
 

You state it is unclear whether the VAB elects the chairperson at the first meeting or if 
the governing body does this beforehand. You indicate that the legislative history for s. 
194.015, F.S. does not contain anything relevant.  

Exhibit "D.2"

Exhibit "D.2" 
Page 1 of 3

mailto:steve.keller@floridarevenue.com


 
The function of the statute is to create the value adjustment board, set forth that all 
members, including the chair, are elected and appointed by the county governing body 
and the school board.  
 
For consistency, we read the word “elected” as action by the county governing body or 
school board. The statute states the county governing body shall elect two members to 
the VAB, then the statute says one of whom shall be elected chair. The statute 
proceeds to describe the school board member as “elected” by the school board. 
Nowhere in this statutory process does it suggest that the VAB elects a chair. 
 
The Department’s rule, 12D-9.004, F.A.C., tracks the statute and provides: “12D-9.004 
Composition of the Value Adjustment Board.  
“(1) Every county shall have a value adjustment board which consists of:  
“(a) Two members of the governing body of the county, elected by the governing body 
from among its members, one of whom shall be elected as the chair of the value 
adjustment board; 
….” (Emphasis supplied). 
 
The election of the VAB chair by the county governing body also relieves the VAB of the 
task of beginning a meeting without an elected chair and then completing the election 
during the initial meeting, which would typically be the organizational meeting of the 
VAB. 
 
SJK/sk 
 

Exhibit "D.2"

Exhibit "D.2" 
Page 2 of 3



Exhibit "D.2"

Exhibit "D.2" 
Page 3 of 3



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
TELEPHONIC HEARINGS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
 

The following procedures must be followed to participate telephonically in any hearing before 
the Glades County Value Adjustment Board (VAB). These local policies and procedures do not 
change, extend or shorten statutory evidence exchange requirements. All parties must comply 
with statutory evidence exchange requirements, and the local procedures set forth herein are 
for the production of evidence to VAB Administration only, and only for matters where 
telephonic hearings have been permitted. 

1. A request to participate telephonically must be received by the VAB no later than 
SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED HEARING DATE to 
allow sufficient time to make the necessary provisions.   The request must be 
submitted on the local VAB form,  available at the VAB link on the Clerk’s website at: 
https://gladesclerk.com/other-services/value-adjustment-board/ and e-mailed to 
GladesClerk@GladesClerk.com; or  mai l  to Glades County Value Adjustment Board 
Clerk, 500 Avenue J, Post Office Box 10, Moore Haven, Florida 33471; or fax to 
(863) 946-0560.  By requesting a telephonic hearing, a party expressly agrees 
to the following procedures set forth below. 

2. Telephonic hearings will be scheduled only under the following circumstances:  The 
telephonic hearing is requested for fewer than ten (10) petitions, and the party has a 
valid medical reason that does not allow him/her to be physically present 

3. Upon receipt of the request for a telephonic hearing, so long as said request is 
granted, the VAB Clerk will provide the parties with procedures for telephonic hearings 
and will provide the party requesting a telephonic hearing with the telephone number 
to the Hearing Room or Chambers in which the hearing will be held. 

a) Any and all parties and witnesses must appear in person during a VAB hearing 
at the time of the scheduled telephonic hearing, unless a specific and timely 
request is made, in writing to the VAB Clerk, to appear by telephone. 

b) The party requesting a telephonic hearing shall call the Hearing Room or 
Chambers at the time designated on their hearing notice. 

c) Remote parties (parties not personally present in the hearing room) shall not use 
a speaker phone during the telephonic hearing, as this may interfere with the 
recording of the hearing; clarity is of the utmost importance. 

d) If more than one party or witness is participating telephonically, parties shall 
identify themselves each time they speak so that all parties will know who is 
addressing the VAB at all times. 

e) The VAB will conduct all telephonic hearings according to Florida law and Florida 
Administrative Code Sections 12D-9 and 12D-10. 

f) If a party requests a telephonic hearing, the party is still required to follow the 
sections of the Florida Statutes and the Florida Administrative Code which apply 
to the exchange of evidence.  All Evidence must be MAILED or EMAILED to 
the VAB Clerk at the address above.   

g) The party requesting a telephonic hearing must also specify in their request 
whether any witnesses will be presenting evidence, and whether said witnesses 
will be appearing by telephone or in person. 

Any and all parties and/or witnesses appearing by telephone for a VAB hearing must be 
sworn in at the commencement of the hearing by a notary public or other person 
commissioned to administer an oath.    

Exhibit "E"

Exhibit "E" 
Page 1 of 2

https://gladesclerk.com/other-services/value-adjustment-board/
mailto:GladesClerk@GladesClerk.com


GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
REQUEST FOR TELEPHONIC HEARING 

 

Hearing Location:  Glades County Commissioner’s Board Room, Glades County Courthouse, Second Floor,  
500 Avenue J, Moore Haven, Florida 33471 

 

Petition No(s):        Hearing Date/Time:       
 

TAXPAYER/AGENT INFORMATION 
 
Name: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Telephone: ____________________________________    Email: ________________________________ 
 

COMPLETE ALL THAT APPLY 
 
Names of the parties/witnesses that will participate telephonically at the hearing:  __________________ 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Names of the parties/witnesses that will appear in person at the hearing:  _________________________ 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
By signing this request form, I understand and agree to the following: 
 

• I will have a notary present at my telephonic hearing to administer an oath  
 

• Telephonic hearings are requested for fewer than ten (10) petitions 
 

• The requesting party has a valid medical reason that does not allow him/her to be physically present 
 

• Any and all evidence that the Taxpayer/Agent wishes to have considered at the hearing has been or will be 
exchanged with the Property Appraiser pursuant to Florida law AND one (1) additional HARD COPY of any 
such exchanged evidence will be MAILED or EMAILED to the VAB Clerk no later than seven (7) days prior 
to the corresponding hearing at the address indicated below.   

• All other conditions described in the Glades County Value Adjustment Board Telephonic Hearing Procedures 
are available at the Value Adjustment Board link at the Clerk's website:  https://gladesclerk.com/other-
services/value-adjustment-board/ 

 

 
 
                
Taxpayer/Agent (Circle One) Signature  Printed Name     Date  
 

Request for Telephonic Hearing must be received by the VAB clerk no later than 
 seven (7) business days prior to the scheduled hearing date.  Requests may be mailed to 
address above; or e-mailed to GladesClerk@GladesClerk.com;  or  faxed to (863) 946-0560 

 
 
*These local policies and procedures do not change, extend or shorten statutory evidence exchange 
requirements.  All parties must comply with statutory evidence exchange requirements, and the local procedures 
set forth herein are for the production of evidence to VAB Administration only, and only for matters where 
telephonic hearings have been permitted. 
 

Exhibit "E"

Exhibit "E" 
Page 2 of 2

https://gladesclerk.com/other-services/value-adjustment-board/
https://gladesclerk.com/other-services/value-adjustment-board/
mailto:VAB@HernandoClerk.org


 
MINUTES OF THE GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING ON TUESDAY, AUGUST 15, 2023 AT 9:00 A.M. IN THE 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING ROOM, GLADES COUNTY COURTHOUSE, 
MOORE HAVEN, FLORIDA 
______________________________________________________________________ 
The Glades County Value Adjustment Board met on Tuesday, August 15, 2023 at 9:00 
a.m. with the following members present: 
   
 Jenny Allen, School Board 
 Tony Whidden, County Commissioner 
 Tommy Perry, Citizen  
 Timothy Stanley, County Commissioner 

Diane Cianfrani, Citizen 
 
Others present: 
  
 Tami P. Simmons, Clerk of Court 
 Brittany Heflin, Administrative Secretary 
 Holly Cosby, VAB Attorney 
 Lorie Ward, Property Appraiser 
 Josephine Boix, Property Appraiser Tax Roll Administrator 
 

1. Call to Order and Verification of Quorum – VAB Counsel (See Exhibit 
A) 

 
Holly Cosby, VAB Counsel, called the meeting to order at 9:10 a.m. then led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 
 
Attorney Cosby stated pursuant to §194.015, Florida Statutes, that a quorum was present 
with all five VAB members present. 
 
 2. Ratify the private board legal counsel (See Exhibit B) 
 
Attorney Cosby stated that she has not taken the certification training with the Department 
of Revenue and passed the exam yet for the 2023 VAB session, because the training is 
not yet available. She stated that she does the training in the stead of the board members 
however, it is open to the members to take the training. She advised she will complete 
the training once it is available. 
 
Attorney Cosby has been serving the VAB since 2009 and has not requested a rate 
increase in many years. In years past the fee was $200/hour. Attorney Cosby respectfully 
requested a rate increase of $50/hour. She shared that there had never been a written 
contract between her and the Board until now. Mrs. Cosby stated Clerk Simmons 
requested a written Agreement. The Agreement is identical to the Agreement Attorney 
Cosby has with the Hendry County VAB would reflect the new rate plus mileage at the 

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 1 of 9



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD – AUGUST 15, 2023 

2 
 

current IRS rate which is what she received before. Attorney Cosby stated she does not 
charge for time travelled.  
 
ON MOTION of Citizen Member Perry seconded by School Board Member Allen the 
Board ratified Holly Cosby as the VAB’s private legal counsel.   
 
No discussion.   
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote. 
 
Attorney Cosby thanked the Board. 
 

3. Affidavit of Publication for meeting notice (See Exhibit C) 
 
Attorney Cosby stated she had reviewed the Affidavit of Publication and it is sufficient to 
proceed. 
 

4. Introduction of Board Members (Contact Information- See Exhibit D) 
  a. Election of Chair 
 
Each member of the Board stated their name and title into the record. Also present was 
Honorable Clerk Tami P. Simmons and Administrative Secretary Brittany Heflin. 
 
VAB Counsel entertained a motion nominating a County Commissioner as Chair, 
pursuant to Florida Statute. 
 
ON MOTION of Citizen Member Perry seconded by Commissioner Whidden the Board 
nominated Commissioner Timothy Stanley for Chairman of the 2023 Value Adjustment 
Board.   
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote.  
 
Commissioner Timothy Stanley was named as Chairman. 
 

b. Chair Appoints Vice – Chair – no motion needed/ appointment 
only 

 
Chairman Stanley appointed Commissioner Tony Whidden as Vice Chairman.   
 

5.  Introduce the Board Clerk or designee (Contact Information- See 
Exhibit   D) 

 
Attorney Cosby previously introduced the Board Clerk, Honorable Tami P. Simmons.  
 

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 2 of 9



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD – AUGUST 15, 2023 

3 
 

Each member reviewed and approved their Contact Information. 
 
 6. Approval of the Agenda for this Organizational Meeting 
 
ON MOTION of School Board Member Allen seconded by Citizen Member Perry the 
Board approved the agenda for this Organizational Meeting.  
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote. 
 
 7. Hearing Procedures 
  Good Cause - Designate VAB Counsel to review and grant/deny late 
filed petitions for good cause, rescheduled hearing requests requiring good cause 
statements, and good cause statements for failure to appear at scheduled hearings 
pursuant to F.A.C. 12D-9.015, F.A.C. 12D-9.019 and F.A.C. 12D-9.021; and authorize 
VAB Counsel to request more definite information from petitioners during any 
good cause review. 
 
ON MOTION of School Board Member Allen seconded by Vice Chair Whidden the Board 
designated VAB Counsel to review and grant/deny late filed petitions for good cause, 
reschedule hearing requests requiring good cause statements, and good cause 
statements for failure to appear at scheduled hearings pursuant to F.A.C. 12D-9.015, 
F.A.C. 12D-9.019 and F.A.C. 12D-9.021; and authorized VAB Counsel to request more 
definite information from petitioners during any good cause review.  
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote.  
 

8. Discuss, take testimony on and adopt or ratify with any required 
revision or amendment any local administrative procedures and forms of the 
board.  – Telephonic Hearing Procedures – Pursuance to F.A.C. 12D-9.026, the VAB 
is permitted to hold remote hearings. As such, the VAB must establish Telephonic 
Hearing Procedures (See Exhibit E) 
 
Attorney Cosby stated these are the same Telephonic Hearing Procedures that were in 
place last year. She suggested that it was a good idea to still allow Telephonic Hearings 
due to the possibility of someone being ill without need to reschedule.  
 
ON MOTION of School Board Member Allen seconded by Citizen Member Cianfrani the 
Board approved the Telephonic Hearing Procedures.    
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote. 

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 3 of 9



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD – AUGUST 15, 2023 

4 
 

 
9. Approve minutes of the September 7, 2022 – 2022 Organizational 

Meeting: (See Exhibit F) 
 
ON MOTION of Citizen Member Perry seconded by School Board Member Allen the 
Board approved the September 7, 2022 VAB Meeting minutes. 
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote.  
 
 10. Adopt and make available to the public and Board members the  
  following: 
  a. Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-9 (Uniform Rules of  
   Procedure for Hearings) 
  b. Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-10 (Rules applicable  
   to the requirements for hearings and decisions) 
  c. Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-16 

d. Rules 12D-51.001, 51.002, 51.003, F.A.C., and Chapters 192 
through 197, Chapter 119 and Chapter 286 F.S. (Reference 
Information containing the guidelines and statutes applicable to 
assessments and assessment administration) 

  e. Florida’s Government in the Sunshine (Sunshine Law) Manual 
  f. Department of Revenue approved VAB forms 

g. Department of Revenue Uniform Policies and Procedures 
Manual 

 
Attorney Cosby stated that each of the items were present in the meeting room and 
posted on the Clerk’s website. Chapter 119 & Chapter 286 F.S. were not listed on the 
agenda, however, those were also available. 
 
ON MOTION of School Board Member Allen seconded by Citizen Member Cianfrani the 
Board adopted and made available to the public and Board members the following:  a. 
Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-9 (Uniform Rules of Procedure for Hearings) b. 
Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-10 (Rules applicable to the requirements for 
hearings and decisions) c. Florida Administrative Code Chapter 12D-16 d. Rules 12D-
51.001, 51.002, 51.003, F.A.C., and Chapters 192 through 197, Chapter 119 and Chapter 
286 F.S. (referencing information containing the guidelines and statutes applicable to 
assessments and assessment administration) e. Florida’s Government in the Sunshine 
(Sunshine Law) Manual  f. Department of Revenue approved VAB forms and g. 
Department of Revenue Uniform Policies and Procedures Manual. 
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote.  
 

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 4 of 9



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD – AUGUST 15, 2023 

5 
 

 11. Adopt or ratify by Resolution any filing fee for petitions for that year,  
  in an amount not to exceed $15.00 (See Exhibit G) 
 
ON MOTION of Vice Chair Whidden seconded by Citizen Member Perry the Board 
adopted Exhibit G (Resolution 2023-1) adopting and ratifying a $15.00 filing fee for 
petitions filed.  
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote.  
 
 12. Authorize VAB Counsel to review and update the Clerk’s VAB   
  website (Uniform Policies and Procedures), if necessary. 
 
ON MOTION of Vice Chair Whidden seconded by Citizen Member Cianfrani the Board 
authorized VAB Counsel to review and update the Clerk’s VAB website (Uniform Policies 
and Procedures), if necessary. 
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote. 
 
 13. Authorize Clerk to hire a Court Reporter for the hearings 
 
ON MOTION of School Board Member Allen seconded by Citizen Member Perry the 
Board authorized the Clerk to hire a Court Reporter for the hearings. 
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote.  
 
 14. Authorize the Chairman to sign Forms DR-488P, 2023 Preliminary  
  Certifications of the Value Adjustment Board (Real Property and  
  Tangible Personal Property). (See Exhibit H) 
 
ON MOTION of School Board Member Allen seconded by Citizen Member Perry the 
Board authorized the Chairman to sign Forms DR-488P, 2023 Preliminary Certifications 
of the Value Adjustment Board (Real Property and Tangible Personal Property). (Exhibit 
H) 
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote. 
 
 15. Discuss general information on Florida’s property tax system,   
  respective roles within this system, taxpayer opportunities to   

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 5 of 9



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD – AUGUST 15, 2023 

6 
 

  participate in the system, and property taxpayer rights – VAB   
  Counsel (See Exhibit I) 
 
Attorney Cosby stated she had provided an exhibit (Exhibit I) which included a general 
synopsis of the Florida Property Tax system, respective roles within this system, taxpayer 
opportunities to participate in the system, and property taxpayer rights.  
 
No discussion. 
 

16. Discuss law/rule changes as they affect VAB operations – VAB 
Counsel (See Exhibit J) 

 
Attorney Cosby advised the Board that Exhibit J was sent electronically to each member. 
Pursuant to §197.3181, Florida Statutes any taxpayer who had any substantial damage 
to their residential property because of either Hurricane Ian or Hurricane Nicole could 
have applied to the Property Appraiser for a tax refund. The Property Appraiser would 
review the application and either approve or deny the request. If approved, then the 
application would go to the Tax Collector and the Tax Collector would issue a refund. If 
denied, the denial could be appealed by the taxpayer through the VAB. Initially, it was an 
emergency rule and has since become a regular rule with an addition to the VAB Petition 
Form. It began with Hurricanes Ian and Nicole; however, it is a tax refund for any 
catastrophic event. 
 
Currently, there are no petitions in Glades County on that issue. Attorney Cosby advised 
the Board that it would carry forward year-after year. Shall there be a catastrophic event 
in the State of Florida, and there is damage to a residential property for more than 30 
(thirty) days then the taxpayer/homeowner could apply for a tax refund for the period that 
the residential property was damaged.  
 
Attorney Cosby entertained questions from the Board. Vice Chair Whidden questioned if 
this would be for natural disasters only or would events such as a fire qualify. Attorney 
Cosby stated at this point, it seems that it is natural disasters only however, understood 
that a fire is catastrophic. Attorney Cosby has not seen any applications for a fire yet, 
adding that was a good question. Residential homes must be uninhabitable for at least 
30 days to qualify. 
 
Attorney Cosby provided changes to the Department of Revenue- Florida Agricultural 
Classified Use Real Property Appraisal Guidelines (Exhibit J). 
 
No discussion. 
 

17. Announce the tentative schedule for the Value Adjustment Board  
  taking into consideration the number of petitions filed, the possibility 
  of the need to reschedule and the requirement that the board stay in  
  session until all petitions have been heard. 

  

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 6 of 9



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD – AUGUST 15, 2023 

7 
 

a. Hearing notice review and discussion of dates for hearings (See 
Exhibit K) 

 
Attorney Cosby stated there are Hearing dates that will be published in the newspaper 
once the proposed dates are settled on. A letter was received from Property Appraiser 
Lorie Ward stating her availability for VAB hearings. In the past, a hearing date is usually 
scheduled in November and the rescheduled date is in December. A brief discussion was 
held on days that best suit the Board, Counsel and Property Appraiser Lorie Ward. 
 
Clerk Simmons stated no petitions have been filed. Lorie Ward, Property Appraiser, 
stated the TRIM notices will be mailed on August 24, 2023, and the deadline to file petition 
to the VAB is on September 18, 2023. Attorney Cosby stated that a taxpayer does have 
the right to file past September 18, 2023, but they must do so with good cause. Attorney 
Cosby would verify if there were in-fact good cause for the late filing. 
 
Attorney Cosby stated Property Appraiser Ward, submitted a letter which included dates 
she was available for VAB Hearings. VAB Counsel is available all dates except October 
24, 2023. She noted the dates of November 20th & 21st are the week of Thanksgiving and 
typically schools are out that week but if it is the Board’s pleasure, she could be available 
those dates. A brief discussion was held on room availability. 
 
Consensus of the Board to reserve Monday, October 23rd at 9:00 a.m. for the first Hearing 
date and Thursday, November 30, 2023, as the reschedule date.  
 
Attorney Cosby announced the tentative schedule. 
 
ON MOTION of School Board Member Allen seconded by Citizen Member Perry the 
Board approved the Hearing Notice with proposed dates. 
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote. 
 
 18. Additional Items for Discussion and Board Counsel review of   
  Statutory and Rule Requirements for Organizational Meetings to  
  ensure Board compliance (See Exhibit L) 
 
Attorney Cosby stated she had reviewed her checklist and had a few questions for the 
Board members. She asked both citizen members if they represented other governmental 
entities or taxpayers in any administrative or judicial review of property taxes. Both citizen 
members answered “No.”. 
 
Attorney Cosby asked if either of the citizen members were a member or an employee of 
a taxing authority. Neither Member Citizen Cianfrani nor Citizen Member Perry is a 
member or an employee of a taxing authority. VAB Counsel stated both Citizen Members 
met all criteria pursuant to Florida Statue §194.015, Florida Administrative Code 12D-

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 7 of 9



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD – AUGUST 15, 2023 

8 
 

9.004. Attorney Cosby advised that the VAB made all local administrative procedures and 
forms of the Board available to the public and Board members; all resources were 
available at the meeting and on the website for the Board Clerk. She advised that the 
local procedures are ministerial in nature and are not in consistent with governing 
statutes, case law, Attorney General Opinions, or rules of the Department of Revenue.  
 
Attorney Cosby stated there is a law which requires the Board to provide the Notice of 
Hearing to any Chief Executive Officer when there is a petition filed for a piece of property 
that falls within a municipality. This would allow them the opportunity to appear at the VAB 
Hearing. This has not been done as no hearings have been set yet. Attorney Cosby stated 
she will certify that this is done once the Board is at that point in time. 
 
VAB Counsel is not able to complete the Department of Revenue Training as the training 
is not out yet. Attorney Cosby stated that last year she completed it on time and received 
a 98% adding that she takes the training in the Board’s stead. She will complete the 
training once available. 
 
Besides providing the Notice of Hearing to any municipality Chief Executive Officer, and 
completing the training, Attorney Cosby stated that the VAB is compliant. 
 

19. Approve the Chairman signing the DR-488 forms and approve the 
Clerk publishing the DR-529 form without a formal VAB meeting, in the 
event there are no VAB hearings/changes to the tax rolls as a result of 
VAB action 

 
ON MOTION of Citizen Member Perry seconded by Citizen Member Cianfrani the Board 
authorized the Chairman to sign the DR-488 Final forms and approved the Clerk 
publishing the DR-529 form without a formal VAB meeting, in the event there were no 
VAB hearings/changes to the tax rolls as a result of VAB action. 
 
No discussion. 
 
Motion carried by 5 – 0 vote.  
 

20.  Public Comment 
 
Attorney Cosby called for public comment. There were none. 
 
ADJOURN  
There being no further discussion Chairman Stanley adjourned the meeting at 9:39 a.m.  
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Timothy Stanley, Chairman 
 

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 8 of 9



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD – AUGUST 15, 2023 

9 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Tami P. Simmons, Clerk of the Circuit Court 
 
Approved: _______________________ 
 
THESE MINUTES ARE NOT A VERBATIM RECORD. TAPES ARE AVAILABLE FOR 
ANYONE INTERESTED IN LISTENING TO THE ENTIRE MEETING. 
 

Exhibit "F"

Exhibit "F" 
Page 9 of 9



RESOLUTION NO.  2024-1 
RESOLUTION OF 2024 GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 

 
 WHEREAS, F.S. Section 194.013 allows the Value Adjustment Board (hereinafter 
referred to as “VAB”), to adopt a Resolution imposing a filing fee on each separate parcel of 
property covered by a VAB Petition; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, previous Value Adjustment Boards have determined it is in the public's best 
interest and welfare to impose a filing fee in order to defray the costs of administration and 
operation of the Value Adjustment process and that said fees continue in effect until repealed; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, F.A.C. Rule 12D-9.015(11) provides that the Board cannot extend the time 
for petition filing but may consider late filed petitions only if good cause for late filing is 
established and the delay thereof will not be prejudicial to the VAB function in the taxing 
process;  
 
 WHEREAS, F.A.C. Rule 12D-9.015(11) permits the VAB to designate the VAB Attorney 
to review any and all good cause matters and make determinations with regards to the same; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Florida law requires that the VAB adopt and make available to the public 
Uniform Rules of Procedure, F.A.C. Rule 12D-9, FAC Rule 12D-10, F.A.C. Rules 12D-51.001, 
51.002, 51.003, Chapters 192 through 197, F.S. the requirements of Florida's Government in 
the Sunshine / open government laws and all other laws and rules that govern the operation of 
Value Adjustment Boards in Florida.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE 2024 GLADES COUNTY VALUE 
ADJUSTMENT BOARD THAT: 
 
1. There is hereby authorized, established, imposed, confirmed, and continued a filing fee 

upon each separate parcel of property covered by Petitions filed pursuant to F.S. Section 
194.011.  Said filing fee as provided herein shall be imposed by the Clerk of the VAB on 
future year Petitions unless specifically repealed or modified by the VAB. 

 
2. The amount of such filing fee is hereby established in an amount of $15.00 per each 

separate, non-contiguous parcel of property, real or personal, covered by a Petition filed 
pursuant to F.S. 194.011 and subject to appeal.  An owner of contiguous, undeveloped 
parcels may file with the VAB a single joint petition if the property appraiser determines 
such parcels are substantially similar in nature. An owner of multiple tangible personal 
property accounts may file with the Value Adjustment Board a single joint petition if the 
property appraiser determines that the tangible personal property accounts are substantially 
similar in nature. A condominium association, cooperative association, or any homeowners' 
association as defined in s. 723.075, with approval of its board of administration or directors, 
may file with the VAB a single joint petition on behalf of any association members who own 
parcels of property which the property appraiser determines are substantially similar with 
respect to location, proximity to amenities, number of rooms, living area, and condition. An 
owner of multiple tangible personal property accounts may file with the value adjustment 
board a single joint petition if the property appraiser determines that the tangible personal 

Exhibit "G"

Exhibit "G" 
Page 1 of 2



property accounts are substantially similar in nature.   For joint petitions, a filing fee in the 
amount of $15.00 for the petition, plus a fee of $5.00 for each parcel included in the petition 
will be imposed.  No such filing fee will be required by a taxpayer who demonstrates at the 
time of filing, by an appropriate certificate or other documentation issued by the Department 
of Children and Family Services and submitted with the petition, that they are receiving 
assistance under Chapter 414, Florida Statutes or with respect to an appeal from any of the 
following:  

 
(A) Disapproval of homestead exemption under F.S. Section 196.151 or;  
(B) Disapproval of homestead tax deferral under F.S. Section 197.253. 
 

3. Said filing fee instituted and imposed hereby shall be paid to the Clerk of the VAB at the 
time of filing. 

 
4. Failure to pay said fee will result in the petition being incomplete; and the Petition may be 

rejected. 
 
5. The collection, failure to pay, allocation, refund, and waiver of the filing fee shall be as 

governed by F.S. Section 194.013 and F.A.C. Rule 12D-9. 
 
6. It is the intent of this Resolution to adopt and incorporate the provisions of F.S. Section 

194.013, and such provisions are controlling as to any inconsistent provisions hereof. 
 
7. Any Petition filed after the statutory deadline for petition filing, as set forth by F.S. Section 

194.011(3), shall be considered by the VAB Attorney as good cause designee, for 
determination as to whether there is good cause justifying the late filing.   If no good cause 
for the late filing is found to exist, the petition will not be scheduled for further consideration 
or hearing. 

 
8. It is the intent of this Resolution to adopt and incorporate the provisions of Chapters 192 

through 197, F.S., F.A.C. Rule 12D-9, F.A.C. Rule 12D-10, F.A.C. Rule 12D-16, F.A.C. 
Rule 12D-51.001 through 12D-51.003, Florida’s Government-in-the-Sunshine Laws and 
Florida’s Public Records Laws, Uniform Rules of Procedure and such provisions are 
controlling as to any inconsistent provisions hereof. 

 
DULY ADOPTED and signed on this 27th day of August, 2024, by the 2024 Glades County 
Value Adjustment Board. 
 
ATTEST: TAMI PEARCE SIMMONS, 2024 GLADES COUNTY VALUE  
  Clerk of Court   ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
 
 
BY:       BY:       
 Clerk of Court     Chair 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM BY:  
 
       
VAB ATTORNEY 

Exhibit "G"

Exhibit "G" 
Page 2 of 2



The Value Adjustment Board of                                               has not completed its hearings and certifies on 
order of the Board of County Commissioners according to sections 197.323 and 193.122(1), F.S., that the

assessment roll for our county has been presented by the property appraiser to include all property and 
information required by the statutes of the State of Florida and the requirements and regulations of the 
Department of Revenue.

On behalf of the entire board, I certify that we have ordered this certification to be attached as part of the 
assessment roll. We will issue a Certification of the Value Adjustment Board (Form DR-488) under section 
193.122(1) and (3), F.S., when the hearings are completed. The property appraiser will make all 
extensions to show the tax attributable to all taxable property under the law.  
 

DR-488P 
N. 12/09 

Rule 12D-16.002 
Florida Administrative Code

Tax Roll Year

Tangible Personal PropertyReal PropertyCheck one.

 County

DateSignature, Chair of the Value Adjustment Board 

INITIAL CERTIFICATION OF  
THE VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD

Section 193.122(1), Florida Statutes 

2 0 2 4

✔

Glades

August 27, 2024

Exhibit "H"

Exhibit "H" 
Page 1 of 2



The Value Adjustment Board of                                               has not completed its hearings and certifies on 
order of the Board of County Commissioners according to sections 197.323 and 193.122(1), F.S., that the

assessment roll for our county has been presented by the property appraiser to include all property and 
information required by the statutes of the State of Florida and the requirements and regulations of the 
Department of Revenue.

On behalf of the entire board, I certify that we have ordered this certification to be attached as part of the 
assessment roll. We will issue a Certification of the Value Adjustment Board (Form DR-488) under section 
193.122(1) and (3), F.S., when the hearings are completed. The property appraiser will make all 
extensions to show the tax attributable to all taxable property under the law.  
 

DR-488P 
N. 12/09 

Rule 12D-16.002 
Florida Administrative Code

Tax Roll Year

Tangible Personal PropertyReal PropertyCheck one.

 County

DateSignature, Chair of the Value Adjustment Board 

INITIAL CERTIFICATION OF  
THE VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD

Section 193.122(1), Florida Statutes 

2 0 2 4

✔

Glades

August 27, 2024

Exhibit "H"

Exhibit "H" 
Page 2 of 2



GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

FLORIDA'S PROPERTY TAX SYSTEM 
RESPECTIVE ROLES WITHIN THIS SYSTEM, 

TAXPAYER OPPORTUNITIES TO PARTICIPATE IN THE SYSTEM, 
AND PROPERTY TAXPAYER RIGHTS 

The following items include general information on Florida's property tax system, respective roles within this 
system, taxpayer opportunities to participate in the system, and property taxpayer rights: 

1) The following illustrates Florida’s Property Tax System, which provides a general idea of the respective
roles within Florida’s Property Tax System:

a. Property Tax Base
i. Property Appraisers - Florida’s Constitution requires property appraisers to establish

the property tax base for their county annually. In doing so, property appraisers
determine the just, or market, value of each parcel of property as of January 1 of each
year. Then, they apply all valid exemptions, classifications and assessment limitations to
determine each property’s taxable value, or relative tax burden. The property appraiser
does not determine the property tax rate or the amount of property taxes levied.

ii. Department of Revenue - The Department reviews the property tax rolls of each county
in July and August of every year. These reviews are conducted to ensure the tax base
established by the property appraiser is equitable, uniform, and in compliance with
Florida law. The Department also reviews and approves each property appraiser’s
annual budget.

b. Property Tax Rates
i. Locally Elected Officials - Florida has more than 640 local governments that levy a

property tax. These include cities, counties, school boards, and special districts. Each
year, usually in August and September, locally elected officials in each jurisdiction set a
millage, or tax, rate for the upcoming fiscal year, usually beginning on October 1. Millage
rates for each jurisdiction are uniform across all property types.

ii. Department of Revenue - The Department ensures that local government millage rates
do not exceed state-mandated caps. In addition, the Department confirms that local
governments properly and timely send notices and advertise public hearings to adopt
millage rates and annual budgets.

c. Annual Truth-in-Millage (TRIM) Notice
i. Property Appraisers and Locally Elected Officials - In August, the property appraiser

sends each property owner a Notice of Proposed Property Taxes, or TRIM notice. This
notice contains the property’s value on January 1, the millage rates proposed by each
local government, and an estimate of the amount of property taxes owed based on the
proposed millage rates. The date, time, and location of each local government’s budget
hearing are also provided on the notice. This provides property owners the opportunity
to attend the hearings and comment on the millage rates before approval.

ii. Department of Revenue - The Department verifies that the information supplied to
property owners is accurate and in compliance with Florida Truth-in-Millage
requirements.

d. Appeals Process
i. Value Adjustment Boards - Each county has a five-member value adjustment board,

which hears and rules on challenges to a property’s assessment, classification, or
exemptions. The value adjustment board is independent from the property appraiser and
tax collector. Value adjustment boards cannot change the millage, or property tax, rates
adopted by local governments.

ii. Department of Revenue - The Department provides annual training to value adjustment
boards. The Department also issues mandatory procedures and forms in order to
promote fair, impartial, and uniform hearings for all taxpayers.

e. Billing and Payment

Exhibit "I"

Exhibit "I"
Page 1 of 3



i. Tax Collectors - Following the adoption of millage rates by local governments, county
tax collectors send annual property tax bills, usually in late October or early November.
Full payment is due by the following March 31. Discounts of up to four percent are given
for early payment.

ii. Department of Revenue - The Department provides training and certification to tax
collectors and their staff in order to promote uniform and cost-effective tax collection
practices. The Department also reviews and approves the annual budgets of most tax
collectors.

f. Collections and Refunds
i. Tax Collectors - If a property tax bill is not paid by the following March 31, the tax

collector sells a tax certificate on that property in order to collect the unpaid taxes. A tax
deed may be sold if the property owner has not paid all back taxes, interest, and fees
within two years. Tax collectors also process and issue refunds for overpayment of
property taxes.

ii. Department of Revenue - The Department assists those who have questions about the
local property tax process. The Department also reviews property tax refunds of $2,500
or more to verify they were issued in accordance with Florida law.

g. Funding of Public Education and Local Services - The tax collector distributes property taxes
to the local governments and taxing authorities. Roughly, 50 percent of Florida’s public
education funding and 30 percent of its local government revenues come from property taxes.

2) Florida Taxpayer Rights concerning value adjustment board procedures are enumerated in Florida
Administrative Code Section 12D-9.001, and include:

a. The right to be notified of the assessment of each taxable item of property in accordance with
the notice provisions set out in Florida Statutes for notices of proposed property taxes;

b. The right to request an informal conference with the property appraiser regarding the
correctness of the assessment or to petition for administrative or judicial review of property
assessments. An informal conference with the property appraiser is not a prerequisite to filing a
petition for administrative review or an action for judicial review;

c. The right to file a petition on a form provided by the county that is substantially the same as the
form prescribed by the department or to file a petition on the form provided by the department
for this purpose;

d. The right to state on the petition the approximate time anticipated by the taxpayer to present and
argue his or her petition before the board;

e. The right to be sent prior notice of the date for the hearing of the taxpayer’s petition by the value
adjustment board (“VAB”) and the right to the hearing within a reasonable time of the scheduled
hearing;

f. The right to request and be granted a change in the hearing date as described in Chapter 194,
F.S.;

g. The right to be notified of the date of certification of the county’s tax rolls and to be sent a property
record card if requested;

h. The right to represent himself or herself or to be represented by an attorney or an agent,
including a person specified in s. 194.034(1)(a-c), F.S.;

i. The right to have evidence presented and considered at a public hearing or at a time when the
petitioner has been given reasonable notice;

j. The right to have witnesses sworn and cross-examined, and to examine property appraisers or
evaluators employed by the board who present testimony;

k. The right to be issued a timely written decision within 20 calendar days of the last day the board
is in session pursuant to Section 194.032, F.S., by the value adjustment board containing
findings of fact and conclusions of law and reasons for upholding or overturning the
determination of the property appraiser or tax collector;

l. The right to advertised notice of all board actions, including appropriate narrative and column
descriptions, in brief and nontechnical language;

Exhibit "I"

Exhibit "I"
Page 2 of 3



m. The right to bring an action in circuit court to appeal a value adjustment board valuation decision
or decision to disapprove a classification, exemption, portability assessment difference transfer,
or to deny a tax deferral or to impose a tax penalty;

n. The right to have federal tax information, ad valorem tax returns, social security numbers, all
financial records produced by the taxpayer and other confidential taxpayer information, kept
confidential; and

o. The right to limiting the property appraiser’s access to a taxpayer’s records to only those
instances in which it is determined that such records are necessary to determine either the
classification or the value of taxable nonhomestead property.

3) As a property owner:
a. You have the right to appeal:

i. The property appraiser's assessment of your property's value
ii. A denial of your application for an exemption such as homestead, veterans, or senior

citizen.
iii. A denial of your application for property classification such as agricultural or historic.
iv. A denial of your application for tax deferral.
v. A determination that a change in ownership under s. 193.155(3), F.S., a change in

ownership or control under s. 193.1554(5), F.S. or s. 193.1555(5), F.S., or a qualifying
improvement under s. 193.1555(5), F.S. has occurred.

b. You may do any or all of the following:
i. File a petition with your local value adjustment board (VAB).
ii. File a lawsuit in circuit court.
iii. Ask for an informal conference with your county  property appraiser** to discuss your

value or application for a property exemption or classification. By having an informal
conference, you may be able to settle the issue without going to a hearing or going to
court. At this informal conference, you may:

1. Bring any documentation you have that may support a change in your
assessment or eligibility for an exemption or property classification.

2. Ask the property appraiser to present facts that support his or her assessment of
your property or the denial of an application for an exemption or classification.

**Having an informal conference with the property appraiser does not extend your 
deadline to file a petition with the value adjustment board. 

4) The VAB is charged with the duty of hearing all petitions filed with the VAB.

5) The VAB Clerk handles the administrative functions of the VAB.

6) The VAB Attorney is hired to represent and counsel the VAB with regards to VAB functions and
responsibilities.

7) The VAB is comprised of two county commissioners, one school board member, one citizen member
appointed by the Board of County Commissioners who owns homestead property in Glades County,
and one citizen member appointed by the school board who owns a business occupying commercial
space located within the Glades County school district.

8) Other than filing a petition, a taxpayer also has the opportunity to participate in the system by:

a. Appearing at a hearing or witnessing hearings (all are public).
b. Appearing at VAB meetings (all are public and public comment is permitted during all meetings).
c. Participating in rule development and training development handled by the Department of

Revenue.

This information is provided for general informational purposes only and does not contain all information 
necessary to fully understand the VAB process.   More information may be found online by choosing "Value 
Adjustment Board" at the Glades County Clerk's website: www.gladesclerk.com 

Exhibit "I"

Exhibit "I"
Page 3 of 3



2024 PTO Bulletins - VAB Attorney Review and Synopsis

24-01

24-02

24-03

24-04

24-05

24-06

24-07

24-08

24-09

24-10

24-11 Taxpayer Rights

24-12 Expansion of Time Frame to Repair Damaged/Destroyed Homestead Property, Etc.

24-13

24-14

24-15

24-16

24-17

24-18

24-19

Assessment of Renewable Energy Source Devices 

Offset of Reductions in Ad Valorem Tax Revenue from Refunds Due to a Catastrophic Event
$200K available to fiscally constrained counties to offset reductions in ad valorem tax revenue/refunds due to catastrophic events

Tangible Personal Property Constructed/Installed by Electric Utility

Physician's Cert. of Total and Permanent Disability

Tax Collections and Sales

Real Property Recording Notification Service Exempt from Public Records

Affordable Housing Property Exemption - 2024, 2025, and 2026 Tax Rolls

Tax Collector Salaries and Employee Bonuses

Disabled person's name added to the form as synonymous with "taxpayer"

FS 197.3181, DR-5002, DR-5003 repealed; FAC 12D-16.002 (forms) updated; replaced with catastrophic events

Personal information provided to Clerk when registering for recording notification is exempt

Certain sections of FS 197 are amended re: tax payments, credits, and certificates

Charter school need not apply annually for tax exemption, but must promptly report a change

PAO may tentatively verify eligibility of homestead exemption for veteran or surviving spouse

Benefit for self-reporting clerical error/penalty for not; add'l PAO notice requirements

Notice to property owner b/f penalties/taxes/int due; benefit for self-reporting error/penalty for not; add'l PAO notice requirements

Time frame from 3  years to 5 years to commence repair/rebuild to continue homestead exempt.

Notice to property owner b/f penalties/taxes/int due; benefit for self-reporting error/penalty for not; add'l PAO notice requirements

Homestead Exemption on Damaged/Destroyed Property 

Repeal of Refund for Taxes for Res. Improvements Uninhabitable by Hurr. Ian/Nicole

School District Advertisement Requirements for Adopting a Tentative Budget
May advertise on publicly accessible website per FS 50.0311

Changes to Lien Notice/Back Tax Calc. for Improper Add'l Senior Homestead Exempt.

Changes to Lien Notice/Back Tax Calc. for Improper Homestead Exempt. For Non-FL Res.

Addresses amendments to FS 196.1978 and 196.1979 re: affordable house property exemptions

$5K increase salary for tax collector; tax collector may budget/pay for hiring retention bonuses

Notice to property owner b/f penalties/taxes/int due; benefit for self-reporting error/penalty for not; add'l PAO notice requirements

Biogas added as renewable energy source

Time frame from 3  years to 5 years; new req. for SOH tax liens; clerical errors addressed

Adds that taxpayer has the right to info. Re: why taxpayer was not entitled to homestead exemp & how taxes etc. are calc.

Clarifies construction work in progress for TPP constructed/installed by electric company

Changes to Lien Notice and Back Tax Calc. for Parent/Grandparent Living Quarters

Changes to Lien Notice and Back Tax Cal. For Improper Homestead Exemptions

Tentative Verification of Eligibility for Homestead Exemption

Changes to Annual Application Requirement for Charter Schools

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 1 of 26



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Physician’s Certification of Total and Permanent 
Disability 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-01 

Effective upon becoming law, May 7, 2024, Section 14, Chapter 2024-02, Laws of Florida (SB 
74), amended section 196.101, Florida Statutes (F.S.). The amendment adds the language, 
“Name of totally and permanently disabled person” beneath the line for the taxpayer’s name in 
the section of the certification where the physician states his or her professional belief that the 
taxpayer is totally and permanently disabled.  
 
Affected Rule and Form: 
The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change. 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-416, Physician’s Certification of Total and Permanent Disability 

 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 
Questions 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-02, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/2. 
 
Implementing Date  
The implementing law is effective May 7, 2024 and first applies to the 2024 tax year. 
 

1

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 2 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/2
cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Repeal of Refund of Taxes for Residential 
Improvements Rendered Uninhabitable by 

Hurricane Ian or Hurricane Nicole 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-02 

 
Effective January 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-03, Laws of Florida (SB 76), repeals section 197.3181, 
Florida Statutes (F.S.), Refund of Taxes for Residential Improvements Rendered Uninhabitable 
by Hurricane Ian or Hurricane Nicole.  
 
Affected Rule and Forms: 
The following rule and forms will be amended or repealed based on the law change. 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Repeal Form DR-5002, Decision of the Value Adjustment Board Hurricane Ian or 

Hurricane Nicole Tax Refund 
• Repeal Form DR-5003, Report of Total Reductions in Taxes from Hurricane Ian or 

Hurricane Nicole 
 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-03, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/3. 
 
Implementing Date: 
The implementing law is effective January 1, 2024 and first applies to the 2024 tax year. 
 

2

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 3 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/3
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Tax Collections and Sales 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-03 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-91, Laws of Florida (HB 113), amends the following 
subsections of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes (F.S.). 

• Subsection 197.374(3), F.S., is amended to remove the requirement of a $10 processing 
fee for partial payments of current year property taxes. 

• Section 197.492(1), F.S., is amended to add the following situations where credit is given 
to certain types of tax collection accounts on the errors and insolvencies report the tax 
collector certifies to the board of county commissioners:  

• properties subject to federal bankruptcies. 
• properties with taxes below the minimum tax bill under s. 197.212, F.S. (<$30).  
• properties assigned to the list of lands available for taxes. 

Subsection (2) is amended to require the errors and insolvencies report to provide the 
inclusion of the names of the parties on whose account the credit is to be allowed, and 
exclude any credits given for discounts. 

• Subsection 197.502(2), F.S., is amended to state the tax certificate on which a canceled 
tax deed application was based shall earn interest at the original bid rate of the tax 
certificate and remain inclusive of all tax years paid and costs associated with the tax 
deed application.  

 
Affected Rule and Form: 
The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change. 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-505, Report of Discounts, Errors, Double Assessments, and Insolvencies 

 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-91, Laws of Florida), is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/91.  
 
Implementing Date  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024 and first applies to the 2024 tax year. 
 

3

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 4 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/91


Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Real Property Recording Notification Service 
Exempt from Public Records 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-04 

 
Effective May 6, 2024, Chapter 2024-149, Laws of Florida (CS/HB 285), amends section 
28.47(5), Florida Statutes (F.S.), to exempt from disclosure under the public records law all e-
mail addresses, telephone numbers, personal and business names, and parcel identification 
numbers submitted to the clerk of court or the property appraiser by a person registering for a 
recording notification service or a related service, except upon court order. This applies to 
information held by the clerk of court or property appraiser before, during, or after the 
implementation of the bill.  
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-149, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/149.  
 
Implementing Date:  
The implementing law is effective upon becoming a law, May 6, 2024, and first applies to the 
2024 tax year. 
 

4

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 5 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/149
cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Affordable Housing Property Exemption 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-05 

 
Legislative Changes Applicable to the 2024 Tax Roll 

 
Affordable Housing Property Exemption (s. 196.1978(3), F.S.):   
Sections 13 and 15 Chapter 2024-158 and Sections 4 and 6 Chapter 2024-188 
 
Effective upon becoming law, May 7, 2024, sections 13 and 15 of Chapter 2024-158 (HB 7073) and 
effective upon becoming law, May 16, 2024, sections 4 and 6 of Chapter 2024-188 (SB 328), Laws of 
Florida, amend subsection 196.1978(3), Florida Statutes (F.S.), provide clarification on certain 
requirements for multifamily project properties. 
 
The amendments to subsection 196.1978(3), F.S. apply retroactively to January 1, 2024, and to the 2024 
tax roll and include: 
 

• “Newly constructed”, as defined in 196.1978(3)(a)2., F.S., is amended to mean an improvement 
to real property which was substantially completed within five years before the date of an 
applicant’s first submission of a request for a certification notice.  

• The list of conditions for portions of property used for a charitable purpose to be eligible to 
receive a property tax exemption under 196.1978(3)(b) is amended to add portions of property 
that are within a newly constructed multifamily project in an area of critical state concern, as 
designated by s. 380.0552 or chapter 28-36, Florida Administrative Code, containing more than 
10 units dedicated to housing persons or families meeting the income limitations found in s. 
196.1978(3)(d).  
 

• Direction that the property appraiser shall exempt:  
 

• 75 percent of the assessed value of the units in multifamily projects meeting the 
requirements of subsection 196.1978(3) and used to house persons or families whose 
annual household income is greater than 80 percent but not more than 120 percent of the 
median annual adjusted gross income for households within the metropolitan statistical 
area, or, if not within a metropolitan statistical area, within the county in which the 
person or family resides, and    

• From ad valorem property taxes, the units in multifamily projects meeting the 
requirements of subsection 196.1978(3), used to house natural persons or families whose 
annual household income does not exceed 80 percent of the median annual adjusted gross 
income for households within the metropolitan statistical area or, if not within a 
metropolitan statistical area, within the county in which the person or family resides.  

 
• When determining the value of a unit for purposes of applying an exemption, the property 

appraiser must include in his or her valuation the proportionate share of the residential common 
areas, including the land, that are attributable to the unit. 

 
• The property appraiser shall review the application and determine whether the applicant meets all 

requirements of s. 196.1978(3), F.S. and is entitled to the exemption. The property appraiser may 
request additional information necessary to make his or her determination and grant an exemption 

5

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 6 of 26



Bulletin PTO 24-05 
June 17, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 
 

only for a property for which the Florida Housing Finance Corporation has issued a certification 
notice and which the property appraiser determines is entitled to an exemption. 
 
 

• The Florida Housing Finance Corporation reviews a request for a certification notice and certifies 
whether a property meets the criteria of subsections 196.1978(3)(b) and (c). This determination 
by the Florida Housing Finance Corporation does not constitute a grant of an exemption or final 
agency action pursuant to Chapter 120, F.S.  
 

 
• Units used as a transient public lodging establishment as defined in s. 509.013 are not eligible for 

an affordable housing exemption. 
 

 
County and Municipal Affordable Housing Property Exemption (s. 196.1979, F.S.): 
Sections 14 and 15, Chapter 2024-158 and Sections 5 and 6 of Chapter 2024-188 
 
Effective upon becoming law, May 7, 2024, sections 14, and 15 of Chapter 2024-158 and effective upon 
becoming law, May 16, 2024, sections 5 and 6 of Chapter 2024-188, Laws of Florida, amend section 
196.1979, F.S. and provide clarification on certain requirements for the county and municipal affordable 
housing exemptions. 
 
The amendments to section 196.1979, F.S., apply retroactively to January 1, 2024, and the 2024 tax roll 
and include:  

 
• If 100 percent of the multifamily project’s residential units are used to provide affordable housing 

meeting the requirements of s. 196.1979, F.S., up to 100 percent of the assessed value of each 
residential unit used to provide affordable housing may receive a property tax exemption. 
 

• Provides that any ordinance adopted under this section must be delivered to the property appraiser 
and the department within 10 days after its adoption but no later than January 1 of the year such 
exemption will take effect.  
 

• The property appraiser shall review the application and determine whether the applicant meets all 
requirements of s. 196.1979, F.S. and is entitled to the exemption. The property appraiser may 
request additional information necessary to make his or her determination and grant an exemption 
only for a property for which the local entity has certified as qualified property and which the 
property appraiser determines is entitled to an exemption. 
 

• When determining the value of a unit for purposes of applying an exemption, the property 
appraiser must include in his or her valuation the proportionate share of the residential common 
areas, including the land, that are attributable to the unit. 
 

• Subsection 196.1979(6), F.S., is created stating a property appraiser reviews each application for 
exemption and determines whether the applicant is entitled to the exemption. A property 
appraiser may request and review additional information necessary to make the determination. A 
property appraiser may grant an exemption only for a property for which the local entity has 
certified as qualified property and which the property appraiser determines is entitled to the 
exemption. 

6

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 7 of 26



Bulletin PTO 24-05 
June 17, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

• Subsection 196.1979(7), F.S., is created stating that when determining the value of a unit for 
purposes of applying an exemption, the property appraiser must include the proportionate share of 
the residential common areas, including land attributable to the unit. 

 
Legislative Changes Applicable to the 2025 Tax Roll 

 
Affordable Housing Property Exemption (s. 196.1978(3), F.S.): 
Section 16 Chapter 2024-158   

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Section 16 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida, creates paragraph 
196.1978(3)(o), Florida Statutes (F.S.). Beginning with the 2025 tax roll, a taxing authority may 
elect, upon a two-thirds vote of the governing body, to adopt an ordinance or resolution not to 
exempt ad valorem property tax levies for certain multifamily project properties under s. 
196.1978(3)(d)1.a., F.S., located in a county specified under s. 196.1978(3)(d)2., F.S.  
 
In order to make this election, certain criteria are required to be met. The taxing authority must 
 

• make a finding in the ordinance or resolution regarding the availability of affordable 
housing in the region, as specified in s. 196.1978(3)(o)2., F.S. 

• advertise the ordinance or resolution pursuant to s. 50.011(1), F.S. prior to adoption, and  
• provide the adopted ordinance or resolution or renewal to the property appraiser by the 

effective date.  
 
The ordinance or resolution must take effect on January 1 immediately following adoption and 
will expire on the second January 1 after the first effective January 1, unless it is renewed prior 
to its expiration. A property owner of a multifamily project who received an exemption under s. 
196.1978(3)(d)1.a., F.S., prior to the adoption of the ordinance or resolution may continue to 
receive the exemption for each subsequent, consecutive year they apply for and are granted the 
exemption. 

7

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 8 of 26



Bulletin PTO 24-05 
June 17, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 
 

Legislative Changes Applicable to the 2026 Tax Roll 
Affordable Housing Property Exemption (s. 196.1978(4), F.S.): 
Section 16 Chapter 2024-158 
 
Effective July 1, 2024, Section 16 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida, creates paragraph 
196.1978(4), F.S. Beginning with the 2026 tax roll, multi-family project property that meets the 
requirements of this new subsection is considered property used for a charitable purpose and is 
exempt from ad valorem taxation beginning the first January 1 after the property was placed into 
service. The multifamily project must: 

• Be an improvement to land where the improvement did not previously exist or be a new 
improvement where an old one was removed and was substantially completed within 2 
years before the first submission of an application for this exemption. 

• Contain more than 70 units for affordable housing. 
• Be subject to a land use agreement with the Florida Housing Finance Corporation which 

requires the property to be used for affordable housing for 99 years and the agreement 
must include a penalty for ceasing to provide affordable housing before the end of the 
agreement term. 

• Require the property owner to submit an application to the property appraiser by March 
1. The property appraiser must review the application and make a determination of 
eligibility and may request additional information as necessary.  

The property appraiser applies the exemption to those portions of the project that provide 
affordable housing before certifying the tax roll to the tax collector. The exempt value of the 
portion of property providing affordable housing must include the proportionate share of the 
common areas, including the land fairly attributable to the property.  
If the property appraiser determines that an exemption was received for any year or years that a 
person was not entitled to, the property appraiser must serve a notice of intent to record a tax lien 
against any property owned by that person in the county and such property must be identified in 
the notice. Any property owned by the taxpayer and situated in Florida is subject to any of the 
taxes exempted by the improper exemption, plus a penalty and interest for each year. If such an 
error is the result of the property appraiser’s mistake or omission, no penalty or interest will be 
assessed.  
 
Property receiving the affordable housing exemptions in s. 196.1978(3) or s. 196.1979, F.S. is 
not eligible for this exemption.  
 
Affected Rule and Form: 
The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change. 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-504AFH, Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Application and Return for Multifamily Project 

and Affordable Housing Property 
 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 

8

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 9 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules


Bulletin PTO 24-05 
June 17, 2024 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
Questions 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, 
please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference 
The full text of the implementing laws (chapter 2024-158 and chapter 2024-188, Laws of Florida) are 
available at https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158 and https://laws.flrules.org/2024/188. 
 
Implementing Date  
Sections 13, 14, 15 and 16 of Chapter 2024-158 L.O.F. and sections 4, 5 and 6 of Chapter 2024-188, 
L.O.F. are effective upon becoming law, and are remedial and clarifying in nature and apply retroactively 
to January 1, 2024, and the 2024 tax roll. 
 
Section 16 of Chapter 2024-158 L.O.F. creating subsection 196.1978(3)(o), F.S., is effective July 1, 2024, 
and first applies to the 2025 tax roll.  
 
Section 16 of Chapter 2024-158 L.O.F. creating subsection 196.1978(4), F.S., is effective July 1, 2024, 
and first applies to the 2026 tax roll.  
 

 

 

9

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 10 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/188


Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Tax Collector Salaries and Employee Bonuses 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-06 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Section 1 of Chapter 2024-90, Laws of Florida (SB 958), amends section 
145.11(1), Florida Statutes (F.S.), to increase the base salaries for county tax collectors by 
$5,000 per year. Additionally, Section 3 of Chapter 2024-90, L.O.F., created section 445.09, 
F.S., specifying that a county tax collector may budget for and pay a hiring or retention bonus to 
an employee if the expenditure is approved by the Department of Revenue in the tax collector’s 
budget. 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-90, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/90. 
 
Implementing Date: 
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024 and first applies to the 2024 tax year. 
 

10

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 11 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/90
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Tentative Verification of Eligibility for Homestead 
Exemption 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-07 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-217, Laws of Florida (HB 1161), creates section 196.092, 
F.S. The law requires the Department of Revenue to provide a form that a county property 
appraiser may use, at their discretion, to tentatively verify the eligibility of a veteran or surviving 
spouse who believes they will qualify for an exemption under sections 196.081, 196.082, or 
196.091, F.S., once they purchase a homestead property. Tentative verification of eligibility may 
only be provided after the person submits the forms, documentation, or other proof necessary to 
qualify for the exemption. Tentative verification of eligibility by the property appraiser is not 
binding on the property appraiser. Decisions by the property appraiser regarding whether to 
consider a request for tentative verification of eligibility for an exemption; or a person’s apparent 
eligibility to receive an exemption or discount after submission of the forms, documentation, and 
other proof necessary to qualify for the relevant exemption or discount, are not subject to 
administrative or judicial review under chapter 194. 
 
Affected Rule and Form: 
The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change. 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-501V, Tentative Eligibility Verification For Certain Exemptions 

 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-217, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/217. 
 
Implementing Date: 
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024 and first applies to the 2024 tax year. 
 

11

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 12 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/217
cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Changes to the Annual Application Requirement 
for Charter School Facilities 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-08 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-101, Laws of Florida (HB 1285), creates subsection 
196.011(5), F.S., which states it is not necessary for an owner or lessee of charter school 
property under s. 196.1983, F.S., to annually apply for a property tax exemption. The property 
appraiser must be promptly notified when the use of the charter school property or the status or 
condition of the owner or lessee changes. If any owner or lessee of such property fails to notify 
the property appraiser of changes and the property appraiser determines the owner or lessee was 
not entitled to the exemption, back taxes are due for any year within the prior 10 years plus 
interest and penalties. A notice of tax lien will be recorded against any property owned by the 
person or entity in the county. If such person or entity no longer owns property in the county but 
owns property in other county or counties, a notice of tax lien can be recorded against property in 
other county or counties. 
 
Affected Rule and Form: 
The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change. 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-504CS, Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Application and Return For Charter 

School Facilities 
 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-101, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/101.  
 
Implementing Date: 
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024 and first applies to the 2024 tax year. 
 

12

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 13 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/101
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

School District Advertisement Requirements for 
Adopting a Tentative Budget 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-09 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-159, Laws of Florida (SB 7002), amends subparagraph 
200.065(2)(f)1., Florida Statute (F.S.), allowing each school district the option to advertise its 
intent to adopt a tentative budget on a publicly accessible website pursuant to section 50.0311, 
F.S. The term “publicly accessible website” includes a district school board’s official website if 
the school board website satisfies the requirements of section 50.0311, F.S. The information 
must be posted on the school district’s website if the district school board uses a different method 
of advertisement. 
 
Affected Rules and Form:  
The following rules and form will be affected based on law change: 

• Rule 12D-17.002, F.A.C., Definitions 
• Rule 12D-17.003, F.A.C., Truth in Millage (“TRIM”) Compliance  
• Rule 12D-17.004, F.A.C., Taxing Authority’s Certification of Compliance; Notification 

by Department 
• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-487, Certification of Compliance 

 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-159, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/159. 
 
Implementing Date:  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024 and first applies to the 2024 tax year. 
 

13

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 14 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/159
cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Tangible Personal Property Constructed or 
Installed by an Electric Utility 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-10 

 
Effective May 7, 2024, Sections 1 and 2 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), 
amend paragraph 192.001(11)(d), F.S., clarifying the definition of construction work in progress 
related to items of tangible personal property constructed or installed by an electric utility. Such 
construction work in progress is deemed substantially complete upon the earlier of when all 
permits or approvals required for commercial operation have been received or approved, or one 
year after the construction work in progress has been connected with the preexisting, taxable, 
operational system or facility.   
This amendment applies retroactively beginning with the 2024 property tax roll.  
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158. 
 
Implementing Date:  
The implementing law is effective upon becoming law and first applies to the 2024 tax year. 
 

14

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 15 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Taxpayer Rights 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-11 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Section 3 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), amends 
paragraph 192.0105(1)(g), F.S., to add that on property determined not to have been entitled to a 
homestead exemption in a prior year, the taxpayer has the right to information regarding why the 
taxpayer was not entitled to the exemption and how taxes, penalties, and interest are calculated. 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158.  
 
Implementing Date:  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024. 
 

15

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 16 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Expansion of Time Frame to Repair Damaged or 
Destroyed Homestead Property and Changes to 
Notice of Tax Lien and Back Tax Calculation for 

Improper Homestead Exemptions  

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-12 

 
Expansion of Time Allotted for Changes, Additions, Improvements to Homesteads After 
Damage or Destruction 
 
Effective July 1, 2024, section 4 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), amends 
subparagraph 193.155(4)(b)4., F.S., to expand the time frame from three years to five years that 
changes, additions, or improvements to homestead property must be reassessed pursuant to 
subsection 193.155(1), F.S., after the January 1 following damage or destruction of the 
homestead.  
 
New Requirements for the Notice of Intent to Record a Tax Lien on Homestead Property 
 
Paragraph 193.155(10)(a), F.S, is amended to provide new requirements to the property 
appraiser’s notice of intent to record a tax lien for properties that improperly receive a homestead 
assessment limitation for any year within the prior 10 years. Such notice must now include 
information explaining why the owner is not entitled to the limitation; the years for which unpaid 
taxes, penalties, and interest are due; and the manner in which unpaid taxes, penalties, and 
interest have been calculated.  
 
Changes to the Application of Back Taxes on Property with Improper Homestead 
Assessment Limitations 
Paragraph 193.155(10)(b), F.S., is amended to provide a new procedure for calculating liens 
where a clerical error or mistake resulted in the improper receipt of an exemption or limitation. 
The new procedure first applies to clerical errors or mistakes beginning on the 2025 tax roll. The 
amendments state that no back taxes are due if a person improperly receives a homestead 
assessment limitation because of a clerical mistake or omission and voluntarily discloses the 
mistake or omission to the property appraiser. If a person does not voluntarily disclose to the 
property appraiser an improperly applied homestead assessment limitation on their property, 
back taxes shall be due for any year(s) the owner was not entitled to the limitation, beginning 
with the 2025 tax roll, within the five years before the property appraiser notified the owner of 
the mistake or omission.  
 
The property appraiser is required to serve the owner that owes back taxes a notice of intent to 
record a notice of tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county. The property 
must be identified in the notice. The property appraiser must explain why the owner is not 
entitled to the limitation, the years the unpaid taxes are due, and the way the unpaid taxes are 
calculated. The person must be given 30 days to pay the taxes before a lien may be filed. 
 
These amendments to s. 193.155, F.S., first apply to the 2025 property tax roll. 
 
 

16

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 17 of 26

cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Bulletin PTO 24-12 
June 17, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Affected Rules and Forms: 
The following rules and forms will be affected based on the law change: 

• Rule 12D-8.0064(3), F.A.C., Assessments; Correcting Errors in Assessments of a 
Homestead 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-501, Original Application for Homestead and Related Tax Exemptions 

Form DR-453, Notice of Tax Lien for Exemptions and Assessment Limitations 
 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 
Questions 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158.  
 
Implementing Date  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024, and first applies to the 2025 property tax roll. 
 

17

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 18 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158


Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Assessment of Renewable Energy Source Devices 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-13 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Section 5, Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), amends 
subsection 193.624(1), F.S., to add that biogas as defined in s. 366.91, F.S. is a renewable energy 
source. Paragraph 193.624(1)(n), F.S., is created to list the kinds of biogas equipment that can be 
assessed as a renewable energy source device. Language is added to clarify that a renewable 
energy source device does not include when the device is interconnected to a natural gas pipeline 
or distribution system. 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158.  
 
Implementing Date:  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024, and first applies to the 2025 tax year. 

18

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 19 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Changes to the Lien Notice and Back Tax 
Calculation for Improper Reductions to 

Assessments for Parent or Grandparent Living 
Quarters  

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-14 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, section 7 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), first applies 
to the 2025 property tax roll and amends subsection 193.703(7), F.S. to require that before the 
property appraiser can file a lien against a property owner for an improper reduction in their 
assessment for parent or grandparent living quarters, the owner must be given 30 days to pay the 
taxes, penalties, and interest. The lien is subject to s. 196.161(3), F.S.  
The amendments to s. 193.703(7), F.S. provide a new procedure calculating liens where a 
clerical error or mistake resulted in the improper receipt of an exemption or limitation. The new 
procedure applies with clerical errors or mistakes beginning on the 2025 tax roll.  

• If a person receives the reduction in assessed value because of a clerical mistake or 
omission and voluntarily discloses such error to the property appraiser, no back taxes are 
due. 

• If the person does not voluntarily disclose to the property appraiser the improper 
reduction to their assessment due to a clerical mistake or omission back taxes are due for 
any year(s) the owner was not entitled to the limitation, beginning with the 2025 tax roll 
within the five years before the property appraiser notified the owner of the mistake or 
omission.  

• If back taxes are due, the property appraiser must inform the owner with a notice of intent 
to record a tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county and include 
with the notice information the property appraiser’s explanation why the owner is not 
entitled to the limitation; the years for which the unpaid taxes are due, and the way in 
which unpaid taxes have been calculated. 
 

Affected Rule and Form: 
The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change. 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-501PGP, Original Application for Assessment Reduction for Living Quarters of 

Parents or Grandparents 
 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules 
 
Questions: 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com 
 
Reference: 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158. 

19

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 20 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Bulletin PTO 24-14 
June 17, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Implementing Date: 
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024, and first applies to the 2025 property tax roll. 
 

20

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 21 of 26



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Changes to the Lien Notice and Back Tax 
Calculation for Improper Homestead Exemptions 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-15 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, section 9 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), first applies 
to the 2025 property tax roll and amends subsection 196.011(9), F.S., to provide that before the 
property appraiser can file a lien against a property owner for an improperly received homestead 
exemption, the person or entity must be given 30 days to pay the back taxes.  
 
The amendments to s. 196.011(9)(b), F.S., provide a new procedure for calculating liens where a 
clerical error or mistake resulted in the improper receipt of an exemption or limitation. The new 
procedure applies with clerical errors or mistakes beginning on the 2025 tax roll.  

• The taxpayer may not be assessed a penalty or interest if a homestead exemption is 
granted because of a clerical mistake or omission by the property appraiser.  

• No back taxes are due if the person receives the exemption because of a clerical mistake 
or omission and voluntarily discloses the error to the property appraiser.  

• If the person does not voluntarily disclose the error before the property appraiser notifies 
the owner of the mistake or omission, back taxes are due for any year(s) the owner was 
not entitled to the exemption beginning with the 2025 tax roll within the five years before 
the property appraiser notified the owner of the mistake or omission.  

• If back taxes are due, the property appraiser must inform the owner with a notice of intent 
to record a notice of tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county. 
The property must be identified in the notice. The property appraiser must explain why 
the owner is not entitled to the exemption, the years the unpaid taxes are due, and the way 
unpaid taxes are calculated. The person must be given 30 days to pay the taxes before a 
lien may be filed. 

 
Affected Rule and Form: 
The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change. 

• Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms 
• Form DR-501, Original Application for Homestead and Related Tax Exemptions 

 
Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at 
https://floridarevenue.com/rules. 
 
Questions 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158. 
 
Implementing Date  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024, and first applies to the 2025 property tax roll. 

21

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 22 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Homestead Exemption on Damaged or 
Destroyed Property 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-16 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, section 10 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073) first applies 
to the 2025 property tax roll and amends subsection 196.031(7), F.S. to expand the time frame 
from three years to five years from the January 1 following a property’s damage or destruction, 
that a property owner has to commence repair or rebuilding of the property, in order for the 
property owner to continue to claim homestead exemption.  
 
Questions 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158. 
 
Implementing Date  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024, and first applies to the 2025 property tax roll. 
 

22

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 23 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Changes to Lien Notice and Back Tax Calculation 
for Improper Receipt of the Additional Senior 

Homestead Exemption  

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-17 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, Section 11 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), first applies 
to the 2025 tax roll and amends section 196.075(9), F.S. to provide that if a person erroneously 
receives the additional homestead exemption for persons 65 and older, before the property 
appraiser files a lien against the property, the owner must be given 30 days to pay the taxes, 
penalties, and interest. The lien is subject to s. 196.161(3), F.S. 
 
The amendments to s. 196.075, F.S., provide a new procedure for calculating liens where a 
clerical error or mistake resulted in improper receipt of an exemption or limitation. The new 
procedure applies with clerical errors or mistakes beginning on the 2025 tax roll.  

•  No back taxes are due if the person receives the additional senior homestead exemption 
because of a clerical mistake or omission and voluntarily discloses the error to the 
property appraiser.  

• If the person does not voluntarily disclose the error to the property appraiser before the 
property appraiser notifies the owner of the mistake or omission, back taxes are due for 
any year(s) the owner was not entitled to the limitation beginning with the 2025 tax roll 
within the five years before the property appraiser notified the owner of the mistake or 
omission. 

• If back taxes are due, the property appraiser must inform the owner with a notice of intent 
to record a tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county and include 
with the notice information an explanation why the owner is not entitled to the additional 
exemption, the years for which unpaid taxes are due, and the way the unpaid taxes have 
been calculated. 

 
Questions 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158. 
 
Implementing Date  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024, and first applies to the 2025 property tax roll. 
 

23

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 24 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Changes to Lien Notice and Back Tax Calculation 
for Improper Homestead Exemptions for Non-

Florida Permanent Residents 

 
June 17, 2024 
PTO 24-18 

 
Effective July 1, 2024, section 12 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), first applies 
to the 2025 property tax roll and amends subsection 196.161(1)(b)1., F.S., to add that if a non-
Florida permanent resident improperly receives a homestead exemption, the property appraiser 
must include information with the notice of intent to record a tax lien an explanation why the 
owner is not entitled to the homestead exemption; the years unpaid taxes, penalties, and interest 
are due; and how unpaid taxes, penalties, and interest have been calculated. 
 
The amendments to subparagraph 196.161(1)(b)2., F.S., provide a new procedure for calculating 
liens where a clerical error or mistake resulted in the improper receipt of an exemption or 
limitation. The new procedure applies with clerical errors or mistakes beginning on the 2025 tax 
roll.  

• No back taxes are due if the person receives the homestead exemption because of a 
clerical mistake or omission and voluntarily discloses the error to the property appraiser. 

• If the person does not voluntarily disclose the error to the property appraiser before the 
property appraiser notifies the owner of the mistake or omission, back taxes are due for 
any year(s) the owner was not entitled to the limitation beginning with the 2025 tax roll 
within the five years before the property appraiser notified the owner of the mistake or 
omission. 

• If back taxes are due, the property appraiser must inform the owner with a notice of intent 
to record a tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county, and the 
property must be identified in the notice. The property appraiser must also include an 
explanation why the owner is not entitled to the limitation, the years for which unpaid 
taxes are due, and the way the unpaid taxes have been calculated. 

 
Questions 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference 
The full text of the implementing law (chapter 2024-158 Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158. 
 
Implementing Date  
The implementing law is effective July 1, 2024, and first applies to the 2025 property tax roll. 

24

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 25 of 26

mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight

cosby
Highlight



Property Tax Oversight Informational Bulletin 

Offset of Reductions in Ad Valorem Tax Revenue 
from Refunds Due to a Catastrophic Event 

 
July 25, 2024 
PTO 24-19 

 
Effective upon becoming law, May 7, 2024, section 62 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida 
(L.O.F.), appropriated $200,000 dollars for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2024 - 
September 30, 2025, from the General Revenue Fund to the Department of Revenue for 
distribution to affected taxing jurisdictions in fiscally constrained counties, as defined in section 
218.67(1), F.S. The funds are appropriated to offset reductions in ad valorem tax revenue 
experienced by fiscally constrained counties due to taxpayer refunds made in accordance with 
section 197.319, Florida Statutes (F.S.), for uninhabitable property caused by a catastrophic 
event. 
To participate in the distribution of the funds appropriation to offset the reductions in ad valorem 
tax revenue, as provided in section 62 of Chapter 2024-158, L.O.F., taxing jurisdictions in 
fiscally constrained counties must apply to the Department by October 1, 2024. The 
Department created and made available for use application Form DR-5005, Application to 
Offset Total Reductions in Ad Valorem Tax Revenue From Refunds Due to a Catastrophic 
Event. The application should be submitted along with documentation supporting the taxing 
jurisdiction’s reduction in ad valorem tax revenue. The requested documentation is a copy of the 
Form DR-522, Report of Total Reductions in Taxes From Catastrophic Events, as reported by 
the county tax collector, required under s. 197.3181(5), F.S. The form will list the taxing 
jurisdiction’s reductions in ad valorem tax revenues.  
The Department will review all submitted Form DR-5005’s once the October 1, 2024, deadline 
has been reached. After review of all completed applications and copies of DR-522 forms, the 
Department will issue the offset in reduction of property tax revenues as quickly as possible to 
affected taxing jurisdictions. 
 
Affected Rule and Form 
Form DR-5005, Application to Offset Total Reductions in Ad Valorem Tax Revenue From 
Refunds Due to a Catastrophic Event.  
The emergency rule adopting Form DR-5005 is available here.  
 
Questions 
This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For 
questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com. 
 
Reference 
The full text of the implementing law (Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida) is available at 
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158.  
 
Implementing Date  
The implementing law is effective upon becoming a law, which was May 7, 2024. 
 

Exhibit "J"

Exhibit "J" 
Page 26 of 26

https://floridarevenue.com/rules/pdf/12DER24-9_NOER.pdf
mailto:DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
https://laws.flrules.org/2024/158
cosby
Highlight



 
PUBLIC NOTICE – 2024 GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 

TO ALL PROPERTY OWNERS AND TAXPAYERS OF GLADES COUNTY 
 
Please be advised that hearings before the 2024 Glades County Value Adjustment Board 
(VAB) will be held to consider petitions appealing the denial of exemptions/classifications, 
appealing the denial of applications for catastrophic event tax refund, appealing portability 
issues, appealing determinations regarding changes of ownership or control and 
qualifying improvements, appealing the denial of tax abatements, appealing the 
assessment of real and tangible property values and appealing ad valorem tax deferrals 
in Glades County as provided under Florida Statutes.  Said hearings shall be held at 
9:00AM on ________________, 2024, with a good cause reschedule date and time of 
9:00AM on _________________, 2024, in the Glades County Commissioner’s Board 
Room on the Second Floor of the Glades County Courthouse, 500 Avenue J, Moore 
Haven, Florida.   
 
The Glades County Property Appraiser maintains a list of all applicants for exemption who 
have had their applications for exemption wholly or partially approved or who have had 
their exemption denied.  Said list(s) are available to the public, in Room 202 of the Glades 
County Courthouse, 500 Avenue J, Moore Haven, Florida, Monday through Friday, 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  The types of exemptions which are included in the aforementioned list(s) 
are:  homestead—all categories; disability—all categories; widow’s and widower’s 
exemptions; tangible personal property; institutional—charitable, religious, scientific, 
literary, educational; servicemembers and veterans; government property; parcels 
granted economic development; renewable energy sources; labor organizations; historic 
property; agricultural; not-for-profit sewer and water companies; and land dedicated in 
perpetuity for conservation purposes. 
 
All hearings are recorded and open to the public.  Interested citizens are invited to attend. 
If a person decides to appeal a decision made by the Glades County VAB with respect to 
any matter considered at the aforementioned hearing(s), a record of any such proceeding 
will be needed for such purpose, and such person will need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceeding is made, to include the testimony and evidence upon which any 
such appeal is to be based. If you have a disability that will require assistance or 
accommodations for your attendance at this meeting, please contact the VAB Clerk at 
(863) 946-6010.  
 
Tami Pearce Simmons, Clerk of Court 
As Ex-Officio Clerk of the Value Adjustment Board 
Glades County, Florida 
 
 

Exhibit "K"

Exhibit "K" 
Page 1 of 1



Page 1 of 3 
 

2024 GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
VERIFICATION OF VAB COMPLIANCE – PREHEARING CHECKLIST 

(to supplement Forms DOR-488p) 
 
Information to be verified prior to or during the Organizational Meeting, and pursuant to  
F.S. §194.011(5), F.A.C.§12D-9.013 and F.A.C.§12D-9.014 Verification: 
 
Date Criteria 

HEC 
8/13/24 

VAB comprised of two (2) County Commissioners, one (1) School Board Member, one (1) 
Citizen Member appointed by the BOCC and one (1) Citizen Member appointed by the 
School Board - Organizational Meeting Agenda Items 1 & 4; Ex. 1, Ex. 2, Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

VAB Attorney verified that Citizen Members met all criteria pursuant to F.S. §194.015 and 
F.A.C. §12D-9.004 - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 18; Ex. 1, Ex. 2, Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

VAB Attorney meeting the requirements of F.S. §194.015 has been appointed or ratified - 
Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 2; Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

VAB Attorney verified that no VAB members represent other governmental entities or 
taxpayers in any administrative or judicial review of property taxes - Organizational 
Meeting Agenda Item 18; Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

VAB Attorney verified that citizen members are not members or employees of a taxing 
authority for the current VAB session - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 18; 
Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

VAB Attorney has received DOR training and has passed the corresponding exam - 
Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 2; Ex. 4; Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

The organizational meeting, as well as any other board meetings, will be or were noticed in 
accordance with F.S. §286.011, and will be held in accordance with law - Organizational 
Meeting Agenda Item 3, Verbatim & VAB Attorney oversees throughout VAB session 

HEC 
8/13/24 

The organizational meeting notice includes the date, time, location, purpose of the meeting, 
and information required by F.S. §286.0105 - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 3; 
Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

The DOR’s uniform value adjustment board procedures, were made available at the 
organizational meeting and copies were provided to board members - Organizational 
Meeting Agenda Item 10(g); Ex. 3; Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

The DOR’s uniform policies and procedures manual is available on the existing website of 
the board clerk - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 10(g); Ex. 3; Verbatim 

HEC 
8/13/24 

All procedures and forms of the board are in compliance with F.S. §194 and F.A.C. §12D-9 
- Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 18; Verbatim 

 Notice has been given to the chief executive officer of each municipality as provided in 
F.S. §193.116 

HEC 
8/13/24 

The VAB is in compliance with F.S. §194 and F.A.C. 12D-9 - Organizational Meeting 
Agenda & Verbatim & VAB Attorney oversees throughout VAB session 

Date Organizational Meeting:  August 27, 2024 
 The VAB held organizational meeting prior to the holding of value adjustment board 

hearings - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 3, Item 17 & Verbatim 
 The VAB introduced the members of the board and provided contact information - 

Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 4; Verbatim 
 The VAB introduced the board clerk and any designee of the board clerk and provided the 

board clerk’s contact information - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 5; Verbatim 

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 1 of 22



Page 2 of 3 
 

 The VAB made F.A.C. 12D-9 available to the public and board members, containing the 
uniform rules of procedure for hearings before value adjustment boards – available at 
organizational meeting and on the website of the board clerk - Organizational Meeting 
Agenda Item 10a; Ex. 3; Verbatim 

 The VAB made F.A.C. 12D-10 available to the public and board members, containing the 
rules applicable to the requirements for hearings and decisions – available at organizational 
meeting and on the website of the board clerk - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 
10b; Ex. 3; Verbatim 

 The VAB made the requirements of Florida’s Government in the Sunshine / open 
government laws including information on where to obtain the current Government-In-
The-Sunshine manual available to the public and board members – available at 
organizational meeting and on the website of the board clerk - Organizational Meeting 
Agenda Item 10e; Ex. 3; Verbatim 

 The VAB made F.A.C. 12D-51.001, 12D-51.002 and 12D-51.003 available to the public 
and board members – available at organizational meeting and on the website of the board 
clerk - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 10d; Ex. 3; Verbatim 

 The VAB made the associated forms that have been adopted by the DOR available to the 
public and board members – available at organizational meeting and on the website of the 
board clerk - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 10f; Ex. 3; Verbatim 

 The VAB made all local administrative procedures and forms of the board available to the 
public and board members – available at organizational meeting and on the website of the 
board clerk - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 8; Ex. 3; Verbatim 

 The VAB made F.S. Chapters 192-197 available to the public and board members as 
reference information containing the guidelines and statutes applicable to assessments and 
assessment administration – available at organizational meeting and on the website of the 
board clerk - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 10d; Ex. 3; Verbatim 

 The VAB discussed, took testimony on and adopted or ratified with any required revision 
or amendment any local administrative procedures and forms of the board, as necessary 
Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 8; Verbatim 

 The VAB local procedures are ministerial in nature and are not inconsistent with governing 
statutes, case law, attorney general opinions or rules of the department - Organizational 
Meeting Agenda Item 8, Item 18, Verbatim & VAB Attorney oversees throughout 
VAB session 

 The VAB discussed general information on Florida’s property tax system, respective roles 
within this system, taxpayer opportunities to participate in the system, and property 
taxpayer rights – this issue has a separate agenda item, supplemented with additional local 
informational handouts; this discussion will be reflected in the verbatim record and minutes 
- Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 15; Verbatim 

 The VAB adopted/ratified, by resolution, any filing fee for petitions for the current VAB 
session, in an amount not to exceed $15.00 - Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 11; 
Verbatim 

 The VAB announced the tentative schedule for the value adjustment board, taking into 
consideration the number of petitions filed, the possibility of the need to reschedule and the 
requirement that the board stay in session until all petitions have been heard - 
Organizational Meeting Agenda Item 17; Verbatim 

 
  

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 2 of 22



Page 3 of 3 
 

I, Holly E. Cosby, Esq., Glades County Value Adjustment Board Attorney, hereby verify the 
following: 

1) that the above information regarding pre-hearing and pre-organizational requirements were 
verified, reviewed, and considered on August 13, 2024, and August 27, 2024,  

2) that the Organizational Meeting for the Glades County 2024 VAB Session was held on August 
27, 2024, and the above information regarding organizational meeting requirements was 
verified, reviewed, and considered at said meeting, and  

3) that hearings for the Glades County 2024 VAB Session will commence on or after 
___________________________, 2024. 

 
 
 
       
Holly E. Cosby, Esq. 
 
 
I, Holly E. Cosby, Esq., Glades County Value Adjustment Board Attorney, hereby verify the following 
on August 27, 2024: 
 

1) There is one (1) item above, which could not be verified prior to or during the organizational 
meeting, which is: “Notice has been given to the chief executive officer of each municipality as 
provided in F.S. §193.116.” 

2) This item could not be verified because no VAB hearings had been scheduled prior to the 
organizational meeting for such notices to be required. 

3) Once the above referenced, unverified item is able to be verified, VAB Attorney will provide 
the VAB with documentation and verification for the same. 

 
 
 
       
Holly E. Cosby, Esq. 

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 3 of 22



Page 1 of 1 

2024 GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
VERIFICATION OF BOCC CITIZEN MEMBER QUALIFICATIONS

Name of Applicant: Diane Cianfrani  

Position of Interest: Citizen Board Member Appointed by Board of County Commissioners (BoCC) 

New Applicant:     N  Information Compiled:  8/13/2024 
               
F.S. §194.015 and F.A.C. §12D-9.004 Verification (performed by HEC on 8/13/2024): 

Y/N Criteria 
Y Own homestead property in Glades County? 
Y Verified Address of Homestead: (from GladesFLPA.com) 

1582 Gate Road 
LaBelle, Florida 33935

N Member of a taxing authority in Florida? 
N Employee of a taxing authority in Florida? 
N Represents property owners, property appraisers, tax collectors, or taxing 

authorities in any administrative or judicial review of property taxes? 

Prior Service Comments/Concerns: Mrs. Cianfrani has been a wonderful and valuable member of the 
Glades County Value Adjustment Board, and the Glades County Value Adjustment Board is grateful for 
her continued service. 

Concerns/Potential Conflicts/Additional Comments: None.  

Supplements Attached:  GladesFLPA Proof of Homestead record. 

Date Applicant appointed by BoCC: Unknown, ratified by BoCC an annual basis 

I, Holly E. Cosby, Esq., Glades County Value Adjustment Board Attorney, hereby verify the 
following:

1) that the above information has been verified, reviewed and considered on the 13th day of 
August, 2024,

2) that the Applicant qualifies to serve as Citizen Board Member Appointed by BoCC,  
3) that this review has been based solely upon the qualifications of the Applicant,  
4) that the approval of the Applicant is not influenced by the property appraiser,  
5) that pursuant to Section 287.05701, Florida Statutes, the Value Adjustment Board has not 

requested documentation of and has not considered Applicant’s social, political, or ideological 
interests when determining if the Applicant is a responsible appointee, and  

6) that the approval of the Applicant is not influenced by any party or potential party to a VAB 
proceeding or by any such party with an interest in the outcome of any such proceeding. 

Holly E. Cosby, Esq. - VAB Counsel

Holly E. Cosby, 
Esq.

Digitally signed by Holly E. Cosby, Esq. 
DN: cn=Holly E. Cosby, Esq., o=Law Office 
of Holly E. Cosby, PA, 
email=holly@cosbylaw.com, c=US 
Date: 2024.08.13 14:16:29 -04'00'

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "1"

Checklist Exhibit "1" 
Page 1 of 3

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 4 of 22



��������	 
�����������������

���������������� ������
��� !

"
��""�

#���$�%�&�	�����'���� � (�������)�
*
�(�++��,��-,����.)�-,����.��-,�/0��.���-�
"�
1 �(���2�3

4/5678�9�:7�!7;<=>?6>5@�AB5C7�>;�@56�65�B7�D;7E�5@�F7GAF�E5<DH7@6;2I

���'���J�K���L��� (M/�"��,
NM"O�4����I

4/5678�9�:7��;7�15E7�>;�A�!7?62�5P� 7C7@D7�4!- I�<5E72�,5=�Q5@>@G�>@P5=HA6>5@R�?F7A;7�<5@6A<6�6:7

�FAE7;�15D@6S�15HHD@>6S�!7C7F5?H7@6�5PT<7�A6�4��)I�+������2I

U��V%W'VX�Y �����

%�&�	������� 15HHD@>6S�5P�ND;7�4!>;6=><6���I

Z����Y��X��� �323���

�����Y� ��2�3

[�\������ O

]>7̂ �NA?

���\��J�_W���

1M
/, 
/M�̀
N�(���a

1M
/, 
/M�!M
/�

������
��� !

"
��""�R�,"�))+)�

�����K�� bc\d����$�K���� K����%J'� e�����Y� 	�'�f

������(, +2�3 
1 � �

+�)���g-/! �2� 
1 � �

L��� 	�����'���� ���Y�f�&�h���f ���� i����#c���

�3�� jN� ��k���k �� �+�+

���� 1-/1 )��k���k �3� �++�

���� 1-/1 ���k���k �� �++�

�3�� ��,�" ���k����k ��� ����

���� 1-/1 ��k���k )�� ����

���� g--", ��k���k �3� ����

���� (1�/)0 �)�k����k �R�)� ����

���� 1-/1 ��k���k �R��� ����

���� 1-/1 ��k���k +�� ����

�������Uc\\��J

_W������$��\�����

�������$��\�����

#c�����Y���$��\�����

%J'� �
 /(

%��������� �R�)�

[���������� �R�)�

l&�������h���� /-/�

X��$�L�m�� N-!�"
 �N�

���������h���� /-/�

e��\��%J'� 0--!�, 
N�

e�����L�m�� 1-/1�,M/(j

[��� 2/.


����L����������Y 2/.


#��f���\� �

#�����\� �

U������ �

���c���i����#c��� ����

l$$����m��i����#c��� ����

%J'� Nj�1-/]�(,

%��������� )R)��

[���������� �R���

l&�������h���� ]M/O"�"
g

X��$�L�m�� N-!�"
 �N�

���������h���� g"O0--!

e��\��%J'�

e�����L�m�� 1
 g��n�j
 !�M"�

[��� 
M �!�1��!

����L����������Y 1�/� 
"

#��f���\� )

#�����\� �

U������ �

���c���i����#c��� �+�+

l$$����m��i����#c��� �++�

%J'� �
 /(

%��������� �R���

[���������� ���

l&�������h���� ]M/O"�"
g

X��$�L�m�� N-!�"
 �N�

���������h���� NM/MN�N

e��\��%J'� 0--!�, 
N�

e�����L�m�� 1-/1�,M/(j

[��� 2/.


����L����������Y 2/.


#��f���\� �

#�����\� �

U������ �

���c���i����#c��� �++�

l$$����m��i����#c��� �++�

l&����e���c���

�FAE7;�15D@6SR�,"

opqrpstu�svws�xy zx{|}~���������}�������{���u������������v��w��ts�so��wq�www��wqsw

�����vppz�{|}~�������~�����������p���}~���~��������������oqo���������qt��s�x����������t�x�������tss� �qqsqwor�¡q�¢��£�}{���w��ts�¤ qpr

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "1"

Checklist Exhibit "1" 
Page 2 of 3

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 5 of 22



��������	
�� �������� ������	�
� ����	����� ��������� ������
����� ��
�������	���� �	����	 �	�����

� � !! !""# $!%% &' !() !%*( &+,-./01 23456701 '28�9:8�2�;8<=> '28�9:8�2�;8<=>�=�?

� " # !""* $(@A%%% BC !�D #(# EFG+,-./01 23456701 HEII=JJ '28�9:8�2

� ( D# !"@" $D*A%%% BC !!" #"" EFG+,-./01 K,L,FM >=K=�=J> HEII=JJ

� NONP�Q�	������������

I+.-1.FR�K,-+0 $D%DA�#!

=SM5,�90,M+50T�K,-+0 $**A")#

J,F1�K,-+0 $D��AD@)

J,F1�8R5.L+-M+5,-�K,-+0 $%

8R5.L+-M+5,-�U<,5V0MW�K,-+0 $%

;+TM�U<,5V0MW�K,-+0 XYZO[\]P

8TT0TT01�K,-+0 $!((A�)"

=S034M�K,-+0 $()A%%%

,̂S,_-0�K,-+0 $()A%%%

<,S.3+3�>,70�̀+5�H630T�a65M,_.-.Mb $*!�AD)�

�����

Q�		�������������

����
c��

defgehij�hklh�mn ompqrstuvwx�y�zr{|w}�~�pvx�j����y��w���xk��l�yihyhdy�lfylll�ylfhl

�xx�}keeo�pqrstu}t�vws|w�t���ut��e���rst{xs�vu{}���������dfd��{�w����fi��h�m{�w���w���i�m{�w����ihh���ffhfldg��f��w��{rpw��l�yihy� heg

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "1"

Checklist Exhibit "1" 
Page 3 of 3

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 6 of 22



Page 1 of 1 

2024 GLADES COUNTY VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD 
VERIFICATION OF SCHOOL BOARD CITIZEN MEMBER QUALIFICATIONS

Name of Applicant: C. Thomas Perry, Jr. 

Position of Interest: Citizen Board Member Appointed by School Board 

New Applicant:    N   Information Compiled:  8/13/2024 

F.S. §194.015 and F.A.C. §12D-9.004 Verification (performed by HEC on 8/13/2024): 

Y/N Criteria 
Y Own a business/commercial enterprise, occupation, profession, or trade occupying and 

conducted from commercial space located within the school district of Glades County? 
Y Verified Name and Address of Business:  

Perry Brothers – a Florida Partnership 
Western Drive 
Moore Haven, Florida 33471 

Y Verify ownership of business: verbal 
N Member of a taxing authority in Florida? 
N Employee of a taxing authority in Florida? 
N Represents property owners, property appraisers, tax collectors, or taxing authorities in 

any administrative or judicial review of property taxes? 

Prior Service Comments/Concerns: Applicant has been a wonderful part of the Glades County Value 
Adjustment Board for several years and his service is greatly appreciated. 

Clarifications/Potential Conflicts/Additional Comments: Applicant is a partner in a family partnership 
which partnership owns and operates a business on land in Glades County. Per the Glades County School 
Board, this qualifies Applicant to serve as the School Board appointed Citizen Member for the Glades 
County Value Adjustment Board.

Supplements attached:  Verification of Commercial Space – GladesFLPA.com, Sunbiz Listings and 
Annual Reports 

Date appointed/ratified by School Board: 2009, ratified by School Board annually 

I, Holly E. Cosby, Esq., Glades County Value Adjustment Board Attorney, hereby verify the following: 
1) that the above information has been verified, reviewed, and considered on August 13, 2024, 
2) that the Applicant is qualified to serve as Citizen Board Member Appointed by School Board,  
3) that this review has been based solely upon the qualifications of the Applicant,  
4) that the approval of the Applicant is not influenced by the property appraiser,  
5) that pursuant to Section 287.05701, Florida Statutes, the Value Adjustment Board has not 

requested documentation of and has not considered Applicant’s social, political, or ideological 
interests when determining if the Applicant is a responsible appointee, and  

6) that the approval of the Applicant is not influenced by any party or potential party to a VAB 
proceeding or by any such party with an interest in the outcome of any such proceeding. 

Holly E. Cosby, Esq. - VAB Counsel 

Holly E. Cosby, 
Esq.

Digitally signed by Holly E. Cosby, Esq. 
DN: cn=Holly E. Cosby, Esq., o=Law Office of 
Holly E. Cosby, PA, 
email=holly@cosbylaw.com, c=US 
Date: 2024.08.13 14:34:55 -04'00'

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 1 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 7 of 22



��������	 
�����������������
���������������� ������� !

"##�����$�%

&���'�(�)�	�����*���� +#,���,��-���� �.����#
�
-��%#���/0�1����1/
�������
2%3456�7,85�.59:;<=4<3>�?@3A5�<9�>34�43�@5�B95C�3>�D5E?D�C3:BF5>49GH

���*���I�J���K��� 0�#1+�%.�0+�

���2L���H
2%3456�7,85�-95�03C5�<9�?�.5=4G�3M��5A5>B5�2.#�H�:3C5G�N3;�O3><>E�<>M3;F?4<3>P�=D5?95�:3>4?:4�485
/D?C59�03B>4Q�03FFB><4Q�.5A5D3=F5>4�3MR:5�?4�2S��H�T�����SGH

U��V(W*VX�Y ������
(�)�	������� /D?C59�03B>4Q�2.<94;<:4���H
Z����Y��X��� �[G[��S
�����Y� �GTL
\�]������ %

$<5̂ �"?=

���]��I�_W���
1���!�,�#"�
�0�̀�
1�#��#a����T
0+� b
,#%P�N+������

�����J�� cd]e����'�J���� J����(I*� f�����Y� 	�*�g

TT����"�,G$�+G�/ �GTL �0 � ���

L�[L����! �GTL �0 � �

Zd���������� U����	��� U��������� �����d]��� &��hV��Y� id���j������ k�����V�]*��l�� m������ m������

% ��n��n���� oL�P���  . ��Tn[�S ->pB?D<R5C $?:?>4  �.� 1���!

% Sn�Sn�TTS o��� q0 �[�nS�� qB?D<R5C $?:?>4  �.�  �.�

� rsrt�K����j���k��d��

�B<DC<>E�$?DB5 o�

�u4;?�N5?4B;59�$?DB5 o�

+?>C�$?DB5 o�PSSL

+?>C��E;<:BD4B;?D�$?DB5 o�PSSL

�E;<:BD4B;?D�2"?;v54H�$?DB5 o��P��[

B̀94�2"?;v54H�$?DB5 wxyzry{

�995995C�$?DB5 o�PSSL

�u5F=4�$?DB5 o�

,?u?@D5�$?DB5 o�

"?u<FBF�
?A5�#B;��3F59�13;4?@<D<4Q o�

c��������l����e���'����g��'����W��Y�]��d���|��B<DC<>E�b>M3;F?4<3>P��u4;?�N5?4B;59P�183439P�
v54:859G

�������Ud]]��I

_W������'��]�����

�������'��]�����

U����

Kd������k��d�����

/D?C59�03B>4Q�F?v59�5A5;Q�5MM3;4�43�=;3CB:5�485�F394�?::B;?45�<>M3;F?4<3>�=399<@D5G�%3
?̂;;?>4<59P�5u=;5995C�3;�<F=D<5CP�?;5�=;3A<C5C�M3;�485�C?4?�85;5<>P�<49�B95�3;�<>45;=;54?4<3>G�,85
?99599F5>4�<>M3;F?4<3>�<9�M;3F�485�D?94�:5;4<R5C�4?u;3DDG��DD�C?4?�<9�9B@}5:4�43�:8?>E5�@5M3;5�485
>5u4�:5;4<R5C�4?u;3DDG
~��-95;�1;<A?:Q�13D<:Q~��/.1��1;<A?:Q�%34<:5
+?94�.?4?�-=D3?C6�Sn��n����P��6��6�T�1"

03>4?:4�-9 .5A5D3=5C�@Q

/D?C59�03B>4QP�N+

���������������� �������������������������������������� ���¡���������¢¢��¢¢¢¢�¢¢£¢

¤�����������������¤����� �� ����¥�¦��������������§̈¦��©ª«���¬���� ©ª«���£�¬���®���©ª«�¬���©ª«£���¬̄ «°��¢�°�°�¬±��²����«¡�������³ ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 2 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 8 of 22



��������	 
������
����������
���������������� ���������

�  !"��
#"$

%���&�'�(�	�����)���� ��*+��",-��!��.�/�-*��!���/�
--"���! 
0�1$��"�- !�/�",-����
-�2���3��/�20��3 3
4�
-!"����56�5
7$89:;�<3=:�0:>?@AB9A8C�DE8F:�A>�C89�98�E:�G>:H�8C�I:JDI�H8?GK:C9>6L

���)���M�N���O��� -! P4
$0�-4
�����7.���L
7$89:;�<3=:��>:�-8H:�A>�D�0:B96�8Q�!:F:CG:�70 !L�?8H:6�R8@�S8CACJ�ACQ8@KD9A8CT�BI:D>:�?8C9D?9�9=:
UIDH:>�-8GC9V�-8KKGCA9V�0:F:I8BK:C9�8QW?:�D9�75X�L���XX�*56L

Y��Z'[)Z\�] �����
'�(�	������� UIDH:>�-8GC9V�70A>9@A?9��.L
^����]��\��� *�6��X5
�����]� ��56�5
_�̀ ������ $

#A:a��DB

���̀��M�b[���
!�P"!!��3!��3�44-

�P"!!��3!��3�44-
*�����"�3"!$�0!

�  !"��
#"$T�R4�����*

�����N�� cd̀ e����&�N���� N����'M)� f�����]� 	�)�g

��*����h36#
46
U ��56�5 
- � �

.������U!+-$�7�L ��56�5 
- � �

^d���������� Y����	��� Y��������� �����d̀ ��� %��iZ��]� jd���k������ l�����Z�̀)��m�� n������ n������

� *�+��+���� o*�� �� �5�+X.5 �CpGDIAW:H #D?DC9 -�P"!!��R
�14��44- !�P"!!��3!��3�44-

$ *�+�*+��*� o*�� q- ���+*��. �CpGDIAW:H #D?DC9 P"!!��2! 3�"!���.r -�P"!!��R
�14��44-

$ *�+�*+��*� o*�� q- ���+*��� �CpGDIAW:H #D?DC9 P"!!��s�41
�U�3!��3""�..r -�P"!!��R
�14��44-

$ *�+�*+��*� o*�� q- ���+�X� �CpGDIAW:H #D?DC9 P"!!��2! 3�"!���.r -�P"!!��R
�14��44-

$ *�+�*+��*� o*�� q- ���+�.5 �CpGDIAW:H #D?DC9 P"!!��s�41
�U�3!��3""�..r -�P"!!��R
�14��44-

$ �+*�+���� o*�� q- *��+�*. qGDIAW:H #D?DC9 P"!!�t��!
$-� P"!!��s�41
�U�3!��3""�..r

$ **+5+*��� o*�� q- *��+*�� qGDIAW:H #D?DC9 P"!!��2! � P"!!�t��!
$-�

$ �+*�+*��� o*�� q- *��+��� qGDIAW:H #D?DC9 P"!!�t��!
$-� P"!!��2! 3�"!�

$ *�+�*+*��� o*�� q- *�5+�*� qGDIAW:H #D?DC9 P"!!�t��!
$-� P"!!��2! �

$ *�+*+*�5� o*�� �0 �*+X*� �CpGDIAW:H #D?DC9

� uvuw�O����k���l��d��

2GAIHACJ�#DIG: o�

"x9@D�R:D9G@:>�#DIG: o�

4DCH�#DIG: o�5XT���

4DCH�
J@A?GI9G@DI�#DIG: o�5XT���


J@A?GI9G@DI�7�D@y:9L�#DIG: o�T.��T�X*

sG>9�7�D@y:9L�#DIG: zu{|}v{u~�


>>:>>:H�#DIG: o�5XT���

"x:KB9�#DIG: o�

3DxDEI:�#DIG: o�

�DxAKGK��DF:� G@��8K:>�P8@9DEAIA9V o�

c��������m����e���&����g��&����[��]�̀��d�����2GAIHACJ�1CQ8@KD9A8CT�"x9@D�R:D9G@:>T�P=898>T��y:9?=:>6

�������Yd̀ �̀�M

b[������&��̀�����

�������&��̀�����

Y����

Od������l��d�����

UIDH:>�-8GC9V�KDy:>�:F:@V�:QQ8@9�98�B@8HG?:�9=:�K8>9�D??G@D9:�ACQ8@KD9A8C�B8>>AEI:6�$8
aD@@DC9A:>T�:xB@:>>:H�8@�AKBIA:HT�D@:�B@8FAH:H�Q8@�9=:�HD9D�=:@:ACT�A9>�G>:�8@�AC9:@B@:9D9A8C6�3=:
D>>:>>K:C9�ACQ8@KD9A8C�A>�Q@8K�9=:�ID>9�?:@9AW:H�9Dx@8II6�
II�HD9D�A>�>GE�:?9�98�?=DCJ:�E:Q8@:�9=:
C:x9�?:@9AW:H�9Dx@8II6
����>:@�P@AFD?V�P8IA?V���U0P!�P@AFD?V�$89A?:
4D>9�0D9D��BI8DH;�5+*�+����T�*;��;���P�

-8C9D?9��> 0:F:I8B:H�EV

UIDH:>�-8GC9VT�R4

���������������� ����������������������������� ¡���¢�£�¤���¥¦§�������¥¦¦�¦¦�¦�¦¦¦¦

�̈�£�����£��������̈�����¤��¤£���©�¥££�����������£ª«¥££¬®���̄¡���¤¬®��°��̄��±�²�£�¬®�̄��±�¬®����̄³®������°�́ µ̄��¶����®¥¦§�����· ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 3 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 9 of 22



��������	 
������
����������
���������������� �������� �

!""���#
$��

%���&�'�(
	�����)����


**��+,��-��."��,�/�0���"��/��1��2��+,���3�1�
,�."���#"!
��0���4�#"!��5���2��+,���3���
,�0���"����1�61��"�,
�*�0���4��"�
*

,�11�3���!-*
7�89:;�<�=:� :>?@AB9A8C�DE8F:�A>�C89�98�E:�G>:H�8C�I:JDI�H8?GK:C9>3L

���)���M�N���O��� ,�"0*
� �,*
�����71���L
7�89:;�<�=:�P>:�,8H:�A>�D� :B93�8Q��:F:CG:�7 "�L�?8H:3�.8@�R8CACJ�ACQ8@KD9A8CS�BI:D>:�?8C9D?9�9=:

TIDH:>�,8GC9U�,8KKGCA9U� :F:I8BK:C9�8QV?:�D9�76��L�/�����63L
W��X'Y)XZ�[ ������
'�(�	������� TIDH:>�,8GC9U�7 A>9@A?9��1L
\����[��Z��� �]3]��6
�����[� 11�3��
�̂_������ �

$A:̀ �!DB

���_��M�aY���
��0���4���P���**,

�0���4���P���**,

��/���������� �
!""���#
$��S�.*����]�

�����N�� bc_d����&�N���� N����'M)� e�����[� 	�)�f

//����!g�3$
*3
T 11�3�� 
, � �

1�]����T�-,��7!L 11�3�� 
, � �

\c���������� W����	��� W��������� �����c_��� %��hX��[� ic���j������ k�����X�_)��l�� m������ m������

4 ��-��-���� n��� �� �6/-�16 PCoGDIAV:H $D?DC9 ,�0���4�.
!5*4�**, ��0���4���P���**,

� ��-��-���� n��� p, ���-���1 PCoGDIAV:H $D?DC9 0���4�q�"�#�����1r ,�0���4�.
!5*4�**,

� ��-��-���� n��� p, ���-���� PCoGDIAV:H $D?DC9 0���4�sP*5
�T���P�����11r ,�0���4�.
!5*4�**,

� ��-��-���� n��� p, ���-/�� PCoGDIAV:H $D?DC9 0���4�q�"�#�����1r ,�0���4�.
!5*4�**,

� ��-��-���� n��� p, ���-/16 PCoGDIAV:H $D?DC9 0���4�sP*5
�T���P�����11r ,�0���4�.
!5*4�**,

� �-�]-���� n��� p, �/�-��1 pGDIAV:H $D?DC9 0���4t���
�,# 0���4�sP*5
�T���P�����11r

� ��-6-�//� n��� p, ���-�/� pGDIAV:H $D?DC9 0���4�q�"� 0���4t���
�,#

� �-�/-�//� n��� p, ���-��� pGDIAV:H $D?DC9 0���4t���
�,# 0���4�q�"�#���

� ��-��-�//� n��� p, ��6-]�� pGDIAV:H $D?DC9 0���4t���
�,# 0���4�q�"�

� ��-�-�/6� n��� � /�-��� PCoGDIAV:H $D?DC9

� uvuw�O����j���k��c��

qGAIHACJ�$DIG: n�

�x9@D�.:D9G@:>�$DIG: n�

*DCH�$DIG: n]��S66�

*DCH�
J@A?GI9G@DI�$DIG: n]��S66�


J@A?GI9G@DI�7!D@y:9L�$DIG: n�S���S]��

sG>9�7!D@y:9L�$DIG: z{|vvw|}wu


>>:>>:H�$DIG: n]��S66�

�x:KB9�$DIG: n�

�DxDEI:�$DIG: n�

!DxAKGK��DF:�"G@�#8K:>�08@9DEAIA9U n�

b��������l����d���&����f��&����Y��[�_��c���~�qGAIHACJ�5CQ8@KD9A8CS��x9@D�.:D9G@:>S�0=898>S��y:9?=:>3

�������Wc__��M

aY������&��_�����

�������&��_�����

W����

Oc������k��c�����

TIDH:>�,8GC9U�KDy:>�:F:@U�:QQ8@9�98�B@8HG?:�9=:�K8>9�D??G@D9:�ACQ8@KD9A8C�B8>>AEI:3��8
D̀@@DC9A:>S�:xB@:>>:H�8@�AKBIA:HS�D@:�B@8FAH:H�Q8@�9=:�HD9D�=:@:ACS�A9>�G>:�8@�AC9:@B@:9D9A8C3��=:
D>>:>>K:C9�ACQ8@KD9A8C�A>�Q@8K�9=:�ID>9�?:@9AV:H�9Dx@8II3�
II�HD9D�A>�>GE�:?9�98�?=DCJ:�E:Q8@:�9=:
C:x9�?:@9AV:H�9Dx@8II3
���P>:@�0@AFD?U�08IA?U���T 0��0@AFD?U��89A?:
*D>9� D9D�PBI8DH;�6-��-����S��;��;�/�0!

,8C9D?9�P>  :F:I8B:H�EU

TIDH:>�,8GC9US�.*

���������������� ���������������������������������� �¡�¢���£�¤�������£¥¥�¥¥�¥�¥¥¥¥

¦��¡�����¡��������¦�����¢��¢¡���§�£¡¡�����������¡̈©£¡¡ª«¬�������¢ª«¬��®¤���̄�°�¡�ª«¬���̄�ª«¬¤���±¬���¤������²��³����¬£�¤����́ ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 4 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 10 of 22



1490 WESTERN DRIVE
MOORE HAVEN, FL 33471

Current Principal  Place of Business:

Current Mailing Address:

1490 WESTERN DRIVE
MOORE HAVEN, FL 33471 US

Entity Name: A. PERRY TRUST, LLC

DOCUMENT# L22000525460

FEI Number: 92-1466216 Certificate of Status Desired:

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent:

CARL S. PERRY
1490 WESTERN DRIVE
MOORE HAVEN, FL 33471 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date

Authorized Person(s) Detail :

I hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under 
oath; that I am a managing member or manager of the limited liability company or the receiver or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 605, Florida Statutes; and 
that my name appears above, or on an attachment with all other like empowered.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Signing Authorized Person(s) Detail Date

FILED
Mar 11, 2024

Secretary of State
3617830798CC

RONDA PERRY MANAGER 03/11/2024

2024 FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT

No

Title MGR

Name CARL S. PERRY

Address 1490 WESTERN DRIVE

City-State-Zip: MOORE HAVEN FL 33471

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 5 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 11 of 22



��������	
�����

�����
	
�����

����	����

�����

������

����������	� 	!����	"	�#$#%#��	� 	&�������#��%	"	!���'(	)�'��*%	"	!���'(	+,	-��#�,	.���"

������	�/	�����/	
���

01��#*�	2#�#��*	2#�+#1#�,	&�����,

34	5-))6	7)8!79	22&

����:	��;��������

2<<===><>?@=

A<BC?@@<C@

C<"C>"<=<<

02

3&7DE-

F�����G��	H������

C?A=	I-!7-).	�)DE-

JKK)-	L3E-.9	02	MM?NC

O�����:	H������

C?A=	I-!7-).	�)DE-

JKK)-	L3E-.9	02	MM?NC

P�:�������	H:���	
���	Q	H������

&3)2	!4	5-))6

C?A=	I-!7-).	�)DE-

JKK)-	L3E-.9	02	MM?NC

H��R���S��	F�����T�U	������


���	Q	H������

7#�1�	JV)

&3)2	!4	5-))6

C?A=	I-!7-).	�)DE-

JKK)-	L3E-.9	02	MM?NC

H�����	P�G����

P�G���	W��� ����	����

<=<M =>"=C"<=<M

<=<? =M"CC"<=<?

��������	���:��

=M"CC"<=<?	BB	3..832	)-5K)7 E#�X	#��Y�	#�	5�0	 �����

=>"=C"<=<M	BB	3..832	)-5K)7 E#�X	#��Y�	#�	5�0	 �����

�Z[Z\Z]̂ 	]_	&]̀ a]̀ bcZ]̂ \01��#*�	����������	� 	!����

d"CM"<?9	<e<A	5J ����#1	+,	-��#�,	.���

(���%e""%���'(4%f�+#g4��Y"D�hf#�,"&�������#��!���'("!���'()�%f1�����#1i#�hf#�,�,��j-��#�,.���k*#��'�#��7,��jD�#�#�1k%���'(.���K�*��j35-))67l C"<

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 6 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 12 of 22



���������������	
����������������	��� �������������������
����

���� !"�#$%"�&'$(&��)�*&"&$+�# , - �(��)�.��%��"& �(-

/��0��12��3�4��5 �����	����6������7���

8��9:3��:���;8<:=���><
���?�@=����A
�9
����
�B���;8�B���;8C�:=	������	D��@=�����9�E6�����7���F���;��
�G�9�E?�����	F:���;87���H���EI�6CCJGK ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 7 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 13 of 22



1490 WESTERN DRIVE
MOORE HAVEN, FL 33471

Current Principal  Place of Business:

Current Mailing Address:

1490 WESTERN DRIVE
MOORE HAVEN, FL 33471 US

Entity Name: R. PERRY TRUST, LLC

DOCUMENT# L22000525470

FEI Number: 88-4418841 Certificate of Status Desired:

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent:

CARL S. PERRY
1490 WESTERN DRIVE
MOORE HAVEN, FL 33471 US

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, in the State of Florida.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date

Authorized Person(s) Detail :

I hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under 
oath; that I am a managing member or manager of the limited liability company or the receiver or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 605, Florida Statutes; and 
that my name appears above, or on an attachment with all other like empowered.

SIGNATURE:

Electronic Signature of Signing Authorized Person(s) Detail Date

FILED
Mar 11, 2024

Secretary of State
2063793745CC

RONDA PERRY MANAGER 03/11/2024

2024 FLORIDA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT

No

Title MGR

Name CARL S. PERRY

Address 1490 WESTERN DRIVE

City-State-Zip: MOORE HAVEN FL 33471

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 8 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 14 of 22



��������	
�����

�����
	
�����

����	����

�����

������

����������	� 	!�����������������	�
�������������������������������������������������

������� !�"#���!�$�%�

&'�����(�������(���'����
�����

�)�*���+�,�-�,.�((


/���#0�1#234%���3#

(55666757896

::;88<::8<

<5�<7�5655

&(

=
,>?�

@4�#A�B���CDD4�EE

<8F6�G��,������>?�

HII���J=?��.�&(�KK89<

L����#0�CDD4�EE

<8F6�G��,������>?�

HII���J=?��.�&(�KK89<

M�0�E��4�D�C0�#��$�%��N�CDD4�EE


=�(��)�*���+

<8F6�G��,������>?�

HII���J=?��.�&(�KK89<

CO�P34�Q�D�@�4E3#RES�������

$�%��N�CDD4�EE

,��'��HT�


=�(��)�*���+

<8F6�G��,������>?�

HII���J=?��.�&(�KK89<

C##O���M�B34�E

M�B34��U��4 /���D�����

565K 67�6<�565K

5658 6K�<<�5658

�3AO%�#��1%�0�E

6K�<<�5658�;;�=��-=(���*I�, ?��V���W�����*�&�	����

67�6<�565K�;;�=��-=(���*I�, ?��V���W�����*�&�	����

�XYXZX[\�[]�
[̂ _[̂ àX[\Z&'����������������	�����

:�<K�58.�5b5:�*H ����'��������������

�����b�������)�c���d)��W�>�ec����
�����������������������c'�����'f��ec�������g���������h���������,���g>����'h��������I����g�*���+,i <�5

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 9 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 15 of 22



���������������	
����������������	��� �������������������
����

���� !"�#$%"�&'$(&��)�*&"&$+�# , - �(��)�.��%��"& �(-

/��0��12��3�/��4 �����	����5������6���

7��893��9���:7;9<���=;
���>�?<����@
�8
����
�A���:7�A���:7B�9<	������	C��?<�����8�D5�����6���E���:��
�F�8�D>�����	E9���:76���G���DB�5BBHFI ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "2"

Checklist Exhibit "2" 
Page 10 of 10

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 16 of 22



�

��������	�
��	� �����	����������	�����	�	������	����� 	����!	�"	�#�	�$�%�$�	�����	&	���'�������

#��'�
��(�����%���!)%���*����+����������+,����� ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "3"

Checklist Exhibit "3" 
Page 1 of 4

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 17 of 22



����������	�
��� ������������������������������������������ ��!��"���#�$�#��������%����&�������

"��&�	��'�����$��� ($���)����*����������*+����� ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "3"

Checklist Exhibit "3" 
Page 2 of 4

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 18 of 22



����������	�
��� ������������������������������������������ ��!��"���#�$�#��������%����&�������

"��&�	��'�����$��� ($���)����*����������*+����� ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "3"

Checklist Exhibit "3" 
Page 3 of 4

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 19 of 22



����������	�
��� ������������������������������������������ ��!��"���#�$�#��������%����&�������

"��&�	��'�����$��� ($���)����*�����������	
��� ���

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "3"

Checklist Exhibit "3" 
Page 4 of 4

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 20 of 22



Holly E Cosby

Holly E. Cosby, Esq.
Digitally signed by Holly E. Cosby, Esq. 
DN: cn=Holly E. Cosby, Esq., o=Law Office of Holly 
E. Cosby, PA, email=holly@cosbylaw.com, c=US 
Date: 2024.07.28 11:11:58 -04'00'

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "4"

Checklist Exhibit "4" 
Page 1 of 2

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 21 of 22



���������	���
������
 ��������

������� �
��������

������������������������ �������!�������"��#�������#�����"��#������#��
� �"�����
�

������������������������ �������!�������"��#�������#�����"��#������#��
� �"�����

$����#��%���&�����'�����&��%����(��������)
�
*����� ����� �������!�������"��#�������#�����"��#������#��
� �"�����
�
���#��� +���
� ,,���������#���-�#�,,.�/0������%�1����������������
� -����#���%�2�.�/��#��#����#�����������������&�����0
�

34567879:64

���������������#��%���������;��������%�#��&������.�<&����#��%��������������������+=>�%�#���.�����'�����&������������(�������������
������(����(.�$�����
������������������
�����������'�#����;��(.��������������
��������;���&����#��%���������
��#��������#��#

�#���.

>�#��&���������&��������������(��������(�
������#��#��;���&����#��%�����������
���������#��&���
�������������.

����'�������;��������������

�
�
�

?@AB@ACD�EEFEA�GH IJKLMNO�PQROLSTQUS�KV�WQXQUYQ�Z�[KTRJQSQN�\�]̂OT�\�A_AC�̀OJYQ�GNaYbSTQUS�cKOLN�HQTdQLb�OUN�cKOLN�GSSKLUQeb�̀Gc�]̂OT

fSSRbF@@ggghTeSQbSiKThUQS@ORR@TejOkQOSQbSIMUMbfhiVT E@Cl

2024 Glades VAB 
Checklist Exhibit "4"

Checklist Exhibit "4" 
Page 2 of 2

Exhibit "L"

Exhibit "L" 
Page 22 of 22


	VAB 2024 Organizational Meeting Agenda Index August 27 2024
	Exhibit A - 2024 FS 194.015
	www.leg.state.fl.us
	Statutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine


	Exhibit B - VABATTY Contract DOR Training Certs 2024 Ins Cert
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Publication - O Mtg 2024 Glades
	Exhibit D.1 - 2024 VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD CONTACT LIST
	Exhibit D.2 - Memo from DOR requiring Chair be appointed by BoCC & BoCC Minutes
	Exhibit D.2 - Memo from DOR requiring Chair be appointed by BoCC
	Excerpt of 7-9-24 Minutes Appointing Commissioners CM and Chair

	Exhibit E - Telephonic Hearing Procedures 2023
	Exhibit F - August 15 2023 Organizational Meeting MInutes
	Exhibit G - VAB Resolution 2024-1
	Exhibit H - DR 488p Forms (2) 2024
	2024 Glades dr488p RP
	2024 Glades dr488p TPP

	Exhibit I - Tax System Information - Glades
	Exhibit J - Legislative Update - 2024 PTO Bulletins and Synopsis
	2024 PTO Bulletins - VAB Attorney Review and Synopsis
	Sheet1

	bulletin2401 through 2419
	bulletin2401 through 2418
	Effective upon becoming law, May 7, 2024, Section 14, Chapter 2024-02, Laws of Florida (SB 74), amended section 196.101, Florida Statutes (F.S.). The amendment adds the language, “Name of totally and permanently disabled person” beneath the line for t...
	Affected Rule and Form:
	The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change.
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Form DR-416, Physician’s Certification of Total and Permanent Disability
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules.
	Questions
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference
	Implementing Date
	PTO BUL 24-02 Repeal of s. 197.3181.pdf
	Effective January 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-03, Laws of Florida (SB 76), repeals section 197.3181, Florida Statutes (F.S.), Refund of Taxes for Residential Improvements Rendered Uninhabitable by Hurricane Ian or Hurricane Nicole.
	Affected Rule and Forms:
	The following rule and forms will be amended or repealed based on the law change.
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Repeal Form DR-5002, Decision of the Value Adjustment Board Hurricane Ian or Hurricane Nicole Tax Refund
	 Repeal Form DR-5003, Report of Total Reductions in Taxes from Hurricane Ian or Hurricane Nicole
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules.
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-03 Tax Collections and Sales.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-91, Laws of Florida (HB 113), amends the following subsections of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes (F.S.).
	 Subsection 197.374(3), F.S., is amended to remove the requirement of a $10 processing fee for partial payments of current year property taxes.
	 Subsection 197.502(2), F.S., is amended to state the tax certificate on which a canceled tax deed application was based shall earn interest at the original bid rate of the tax certificate and remain inclusive of all tax years paid and costs associat...
	Affected Rule and Form:
	The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change.
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Form DR-505, Report of Discounts, Errors, Double Assessments, and Insolvencies
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules.
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date

	PTO BUL 24-04 Pub Recs-Recording Notification Service.pdf
	Effective May 6, 2024, Chapter 2024-149, Laws of Florida (CS/HB 285), amends section 28.47(5), Florida Statutes (F.S.), to exempt from disclosure under the public records law all e-mail addresses, telephone numbers, personal and business names, and pa...
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-05 Affordable Housing Property Exemption.pdf
	 From ad valorem property taxes, the units in multifamily projects meeting the requirements of subsection 196.1978(3), used to house natural persons or families whose annual household income does not exceed 80 percent of the median annual adjusted gr...
	 When determining the value of a unit for purposes of applying an exemption, the property appraiser must include in his or her valuation the proportionate share of the residential common areas, including the land, that are attributable to the unit.
	 The Florida Housing Finance Corporation reviews a request for a certification notice and certifies whether a property meets the criteria of subsections 196.1978(3)(b) and (c). This determination by the Florida Housing Finance Corporation does not co...
	 Units used as a transient public lodging establishment as defined in s. 509.013 are not eligible for an affordable housing exemption.
	County and Municipal Affordable Housing Property Exemption (s. 196.1979, F.S.): Sections 14 and 15, Chapter 2024-158 and Sections 5 and 6 of Chapter 2024-188
	Effective upon becoming law, May 7, 2024, sections 14, and 15 of Chapter 2024-158 and effective upon becoming law, May 16, 2024, sections 5 and 6 of Chapter 2024-188, Laws of Florida, amend section 196.1979, F.S. and provide clarification on certain r...
	The amendments to section 196.1979, F.S., apply retroactively to January 1, 2024, and the 2024 tax roll and include:
	 If 100 percent of the multifamily project’s residential units are used to provide affordable housing meeting the requirements of s. 196.1979, F.S., up to 100 percent of the assessed value of each residential unit used to provide affordable housing m...
	 Provides that any ordinance adopted under this section must be delivered to the property appraiser and the department within 10 days after its adoption but no later than January 1 of the year such exemption will take effect.
	 Subsection 196.1979(7), F.S., is created stating that when determining the value of a unit for purposes of applying an exemption, the property appraiser must include the proportionate share of the residential common areas, including land attributabl...
	Legislative Changes Applicable to the 2026 Tax Roll
	Affordable Housing Property Exemption (s. 196.1978(4), F.S.):
	Section 16 Chapter 2024-158
	Effective July 1, 2024, Section 16 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida, creates paragraph 196.1978(4), F.S. Beginning with the 2026 tax roll, multi-family project property that meets the requirements of this new subsection is considered property used...
	 Be an improvement to land where the improvement did not previously exist or be a new improvement where an old one was removed and was substantially completed within 2 years before the first submission of an application for this exemption.
	 Contain more than 70 units for affordable housing.
	 Be subject to a land use agreement with the Florida Housing Finance Corporation which requires the property to be used for affordable housing for 99 years and the agreement must include a penalty for ceasing to provide affordable housing before the ...
	 Require the property owner to submit an application to the property appraiser by March 1. The property appraiser must review the application and make a determination of eligibility and may request additional information as necessary.
	The property appraiser applies the exemption to those portions of the project that provide affordable housing before certifying the tax roll to the tax collector. The exempt value of the portion of property providing affordable housing must include th...
	If the property appraiser determines that an exemption was received for any year or years that a person was not entitled to, the property appraiser must serve a notice of intent to record a tax lien against any property owned by that person in the cou...
	Property receiving the affordable housing exemptions in s. 196.1978(3) or s. 196.1979, F.S. is not eligible for this exemption.
	Affected Rule and Form:
	The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change.
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Form DR-504AFH, Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Application and Return for Multifamily Project and Affordable Housing Property
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules.
	Questions
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference
	Implementing Date

	PTO BUL 24-06 Local Government Employees.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, Section 1 of Chapter 2024-90, Laws of Florida (SB 958), amends section 145.11(1), Florida Statutes (F.S.), to increase the base salaries for county tax collectors by $5,000 per year. Additionally, Section 3 of Chapter 2024-90, ...
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-07 Tentative Verification Eligibility for Homestead Exemption.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-217, Laws of Florida (HB 1161), creates section 196.092, F.S. The law requires the Department of Revenue to provide a form that a county property appraiser may use, at their discretion, to tentatively verify the el...
	Affected Rule and Form:
	The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change.
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Form DR-501V, Tentative Eligibility Verification For Certain Exemptions
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules.
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-08 Application for Charter School Facilities.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-101, Laws of Florida (HB 1285), creates subsection 196.011(5), F.S., which states it is not necessary for an owner or lessee of charter school property under s. 196.1983, F.S., to annually apply for a property tax ...
	Affected Rule and Form:
	The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change.
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Form DR-504CS, Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Application and Return For Charter School Facilities
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules.
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-09 School District Advertisment Requirements forMethod of Fixing Millage.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, Chapter 2024-159, Laws of Florida (SB 7002), amends subparagraph 200.065(2)(f)1., Florida Statute (F.S.), allowing each school district the option to advertise its intent to adopt a tentative budget on a publicly accessible web...
	Affected Rules and Form:
	The following rules and form will be affected based on law change:
	 Rule 12D-17.002, F.A.C., Definitions
	 Rule 12D-17.003, F.A.C., Truth in Millage (“TRIM”) Compliance
	 Rule 12D-17.004, F.A.C., Taxing Authority’s Certification of Compliance; Notification by Department
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Form DR-487, Certification of Compliance
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules.
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-10 TPP Definition.pdf
	Effective May 7, 2024, Sections 1 and 2 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), amend paragraph 192.001(11)(d), F.S., clarifying the definition of construction work in progress related to items of tangible personal property constructed or inst...
	This amendment applies retroactively beginning with the 2024 property tax roll.
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-11 Taxpayer Rights.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, Section 3 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), amends paragraph 192.0105(1)(g), F.S., to add that on property determined not to have been entitled to a homestead exemption in a prior year, the taxpayer has the right ...
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-12.pdf
	Paragraph 193.155(10)(a), F.S, is amended to provide new requirements to the property appraiser’s notice of intent to record a tax lien for properties that improperly receive a homestead assessment limitation for any year within the prior 10 years. Su...
	Changes to the Application of Back Taxes on Property with Improper Homestead Assessment Limitations
	The property appraiser is required to serve the owner that owes back taxes a notice of intent to record a notice of tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county. The property must be identified in the notice. The property appraiser...
	These amendments to s. 193.155, F.S., first apply to the 2025 property tax roll.
	Questions
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference
	Implementing Date

	PTO BUL 24-13 Assessment of Renewable Energy Source Devices.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, Section 5, Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), amends subsection 193.624(1), F.S., to add that biogas as defined in s. 366.91, F.S. is a renewable energy source. Paragraph 193.624(1)(n), F.S., is created to list the ki...
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-14.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, section 7 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), first applies to the 2025 property tax roll and amends subsection 193.703(7), F.S. to require that before the property appraiser can file a lien against a property owner...
	The amendments to s. 193.703(7), F.S. provide a new procedure calculating liens where a clerical error or mistake resulted in the improper receipt of an exemption or limitation. The new procedure applies with clerical errors or mistakes beginning on t...
	 If a person receives the reduction in assessed value because of a clerical mistake or omission and voluntarily discloses such error to the property appraiser, no back taxes are due.
	 If the person does not voluntarily disclose to the property appraiser the improper reduction to their assessment due to a clerical mistake or omission back taxes are due for any year(s) the owner was not entitled to the limitation, beginning with th...
	 If back taxes are due, the property appraiser must inform the owner with a notice of intent to record a tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county and include with the notice information the property appraiser’s explanation why...
	Affected Rule and Form:
	The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change.
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Form DR-501PGP, Original Application for Assessment Reduction for Living Quarters of Parents or Grandparents
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules
	Questions:
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com
	Reference:
	Implementing Date:

	PTO BUL 24-15 Annual Application Required for Exemption.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, section 9 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), first applies to the 2025 property tax roll and amends subsection 196.011(9), F.S., to provide that before the property appraiser can file a lien against a property owne...
	The amendments to s. 196.011(9)(b), F.S., provide a new procedure for calculating liens where a clerical error or mistake resulted in the improper receipt of an exemption or limitation. The new procedure applies with clerical errors or mistakes beginn...
	 The taxpayer may not be assessed a penalty or interest if a homestead exemption is granted because of a clerical mistake or omission by the property appraiser.
	 No back taxes are due if the person receives the exemption because of a clerical mistake or omission and voluntarily discloses the error to the property appraiser.
	 If the person does not voluntarily disclose the error before the property appraiser notifies the owner of the mistake or omission, back taxes are due for any year(s) the owner was not entitled to the exemption beginning with the 2025 tax roll within...
	 If back taxes are due, the property appraiser must inform the owner with a notice of intent to record a notice of tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county. The property must be identified in the notice. The property appraiser...
	Affected Rule and Form:
	The following rule and form will be affected based on the law change.
	 Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C., Index to Forms
	 Form DR-501, Original Application for Homestead and Related Tax Exemptions
	Information about the status of the Department’s rulemaking is available at https://floridarevenue.com/rules.
	Questions
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference
	Implementing Date

	PTO BUL 24-16 Exemption of Homesteads.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, section 10 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073) first applies to the 2025 property tax roll and amends subsection 196.031(7), F.S. to expand the time frame from three years to five years from the January 1 following a...
	Questions
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference
	Implementing Date

	PTO BUL 24-17 Additional Homestead Exemption for Persons 65 and Older.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, Section 11 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), first applies to the 2025 tax roll and amends section 196.075(9), F.S. to provide that if a person erroneously receives the additional homestead exemption for persons 6...
	  No back taxes are due if the person receives the additional senior homestead exemption because of a clerical mistake or omission and voluntarily discloses the error to the property appraiser.
	Questions
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference
	Implementing Date

	PTO BUL 24-18 HX-Lien Imposed on Property of Person Claiming Ex Altho Not Perm Resident.pdf
	Effective July 1, 2024, section 12 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (HB 7073), first applies to the 2025 property tax roll and amends subsection 196.161(1)(b)1., F.S., to add that if a non-Florida permanent resident improperly receives a homestead...
	 No back taxes are due if the person receives the homestead exemption because of a clerical mistake or omission and voluntarily discloses the error to the property appraiser.
	 If the person does not voluntarily disclose the error to the property appraiser before the property appraiser notifies the owner of the mistake or omission, back taxes are due for any year(s) the owner was not entitled to the limitation beginning wi...
	 If back taxes are due, the property appraiser must inform the owner with a notice of intent to record a tax lien against any property owned by that person in the county, and the property must be identified in the notice. The property appraiser must ...
	Questions
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference
	Implementing Date


	bulletin2419 Offset of Reductions in Ad Valorem Tax Revenue from Refunds Due to a Catastrophic Event
	Effective upon becoming law, May 7, 2024, section 62 of Chapter 2024-158, Laws of Florida (L.O.F.), appropriated $200,000 dollars for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025, from the General Revenue Fund to the Department of Re...
	To participate in the distribution of the funds appropriation to offset the reductions in ad valorem tax revenue, as provided in section 62 of Chapter 2024-158, L.O.F., taxing jurisdictions in fiscally constrained counties must apply to the Department...
	The Department will review all submitted Form DR-5005’s once the October 1, 2024, deadline has been reached. After review of all completed applications and copies of DR-522 forms, the Department will issue the offset in reduction of property tax reven...
	Affected Rule and Form
	Form DR-5005, Application to Offset Total Reductions in Ad Valorem Tax Revenue From Refunds Due to a Catastrophic Event.
	The emergency rule adopting Form DR-5005 is available here.
	Questions
	This bulletin is provided by the Department of Revenue for your general information. For questions, please email DORPTO@floridarevenue.com.
	Reference
	Implementing Date



	Exhibit K - Glades County VAB Hearings Notice 2024
	Exhibit L - VAB Pre-Hearing O Mtg Compliance Checklist and Ex. 1-4

	VjdGlvbnMvMDE5NC4wMTUuaHRtbAA=: 
	StatuteYear: [2024]
	Search_String: 
	input13: 
	StatuteYear_(1): [2024]
	NewSelection: 



